Public Document Pack

C'I"";Gm .
e i1y Flint
I " Contact Officer: Nicola Gittins
CII:'J!J!!&‘!!:%DHI re 01352 702345

nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler,
Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

11 November 2015
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet which will be held at 9.30 am on
Tuesday, 17th November, 2015 in the Clwyd Committee Room, County Hall, Mold
CH7 6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 14)
Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

4  APPROVAL TO APPLY TO WELSH GOVERNMENT FOR SUSPENSION
OF THE RIGHT TO BUY IN FLINTSHIRE (Pages 15 - 22)

Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) - Cabinet Member for
Housing

Purpose: To seek approval for suspension of Right to Buy in Flintshire

1



AGEING WELL IN FLINTSHIRE (Pages 23 - 56)

Report of Chief Officer (Social Services) - Cabinet Member for Social Services
Purpose: To consider and endorse the strategy

TRADES UNION BILL (Pages 57 - 66)

Report of Chief Executive — Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

Purpose: To agree a Council position on the Bill.

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

JOHN SUMMERS HIGH SCHOOL - OPTIONS FOR HOME TO SCHOOL
TRANSPORT (Pages 67 - 74)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: To review in detail the options for future home to school
transport arrangements for John Summers High School in the
event of school closure.

CHANGES TO DOG BREEDING REGULATIONS (Pages 75 - 90)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Cabinet Member for
Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

Purpose: To inform of changes to regulations in respect of dog breeding
in Wales.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 5) (Pages 91 - 118)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

Purpose: To provide the latest revenue budget monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and expenditure as at month 5 and
projected forward to year-end based on the most up to date
information available



10

11

12

COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2016-17 (Pages 119 - 124)

Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

Purpose: Approval of the Council Tax Base for the financial year 2016-
17

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 125 - 126)

Purpose: To provide details of actions taken under delegated powers

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 15 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

It is not good employment practice or in the public interest for matters the
subject of consultation with employees effected and other unions to be
discussed in public at this stage of the process.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES SENIOR MANAGER RESTRUCTURE (Pages 163
~170)

Report of Chief Officer (Social Services) - Cabinet Member for Social Services

Purpose: To seek approval of the proposed restructure in Children’s
Services.

Yours faithfully

e

T

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager



This page is intentionally left blank



77.

78.

79.

Agenda ltem 3

CABINET
13 OCTOBER 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held at County
Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 13 October 2015

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Christine Jones, Kevin Jones
and Billy Mullin

APOLOGY:
Councillor Derek Butler

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Chief Officer
(Governance), Chief Officer (Organisational Change), Chief Officer (Social Services)
Corporate Finance Manager, Policy and Performance Manager, Operational
Manager — North and Trunk Roads and Team Manager — Committee Services

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Attridge declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda item
number 7 — North East Wales (NEW) Homes Business Plan 2015/20, as he was the
Chairman of NEW Homes. He had applied for a dispensation at the Standards
Committee the previous evening to speak and answer questions at Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings on matters relating to NEW Homes Ltd
but to leave the room before the debate and vote. The dispensation had been
granted.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2015 had been circulated
with the agenda.

Councillor Attridge said that on minute number 65 — School Modernisation —
School Standards and Organisation At 2013 — John Summers High School,
Councillor Shotton spoke of the comments made by the Local Assembly Member and
the ex-Head teacher of Connah’s Quay High School, not the ex-Head teacher of
John Summers High School.

RESOLVED:
That subject to the above amendment the minutes be approved as a correct record.

CLWYD THEATR CYMRU

Councillor Shotton welcomed the recently appointed Artistic Director of Clwyd
Theatr Cymru (CTC), Tamara Harvey, to the meeting.

Page 5



The Chief Executive said progress reports on CTC had previously been
reported to Cabinet alongside the Business Plan and this was a timely opportunity to
provide a progress update. The Organisational Change Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 28 September 2015 had a positive discussion about CTC and the
Chief Executive provided information on its governance arrangements explaining that
it was wholly owned by Flintshire County Council. However, CTC had a vast amount
of freedom to operate artistically. It had a Board of members, consisting of a number
of Councillors, which was a Sub-Committee of the Council. CTC had seen, along
with all other services, a budget reduction which resulted in a decrease of £0.200m
funding in 2015/16. However, CTC remained in the top group of theatres to receive
funding from the Arts Council for Wales (ACW). The level of future funding levels
from the ACW was awaited.

The Chief Officer (Organisational Change) provided details of the short /
medium term (2015/16 — 2016/17) aims of CTC which were outlined in the Business
Plan, which were:

e Appointment of a new Artistic Director with a new artistic vision;

e Deliver on reduced funding by £200k in 2015/16 through a robust and
financially sustainable business framework;

e Examination of the corporate structure of CTC,;

e To find creative solutions through new ways of working and initiating
new partnerships and collaborations in all area of work, pursuing the
Welsh Producing Consortium initiative;

e To develop the Celtic Festival of new writing in collaboration with
theatres and companies from the other Celtic nations;

e To develop an Annual Report to reflect and promote everything CTC
did;

e To extend community links to a bigger and broader range of people;
and

e To progress the building refurbishment project on to its development
stage.

Tamara Harvey thanked Cabinet Members for inviting her to the meeting. She
said CTC was a unique theatre as, along with only one other, it was owned by a
County Council. It was her vision to broaden the repertoire of CTC and build on the
varied range of visiting work, film and visual art. It was hoped the Youth Theatre
would be re-launched in 2016, working with a wide range of community organisations
to provide opportunities for artistic engagement.

A new marketing plan was being developed to enable CTC to reach out to
different and more diverse audiences with a more varied programme of work with a
greater number of collaborations. She emphasised her desire for CTC to have a
holistic approach with the building being transformed into a crucible of creativity with
longer term plan to revitalise the foyer spaces in terms of both the entertainment on
offer and the food and drink available.

The Chief Officer (Organisational Change) explained that consideration
needed to be given on future governance arrangements at CTC and whether they
should remain as they were or whether alternative governance options should be
considered. A different legal model needed to be examined which could be a more

Page 6



80.

flexible and cost effective approach for operating the productions. In particular this
should address the best method for accounting for tax issues.

Councillor Kevin Jones asked if match funding was required from the Authority
on any funding that may be received by CTC for renovation works. The Chief
Executive said match funding was not an option due to the budget pressures faced
by the Authority. A case had been made to the ACW and Welsh Government (WG)
saying that costs for any sizable renovations would need to be met from national
funding.

Members welcomed the report and the work being done by the Artistic
Director commenting that the vision for CTC would inspire and encourage attendance
at CTC.

The Chief Executive concluded that any issues which were considered to have
an element of risk would be reported to Cabinet, such as the staff restructure.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the Business Plan be endorsed and Members assured by progress; and

(b) That the Chief Officer (Organisational Change) and the Chief Officer
(Governance), in consultation with the Leader, be authorised to prepare and
report back on a corporate structure. This to include consideration of a new
legal company for effectively managing the delivery of productions at the CTC
including the best way to account for tax issues.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2014/15

Councillor Mullin provided details on the progress against the Improvement
Priorities as detailed in the Improvement Plan 2014/15.

The report reflected the overall good progress that had been made against the
priorities and the high level of confidence there was in achieving the desired
outcomes. It also showed that risks were managed well with only one remaining at a
high level at year end.

The Chief Executive reported on the progress against key activities as follows:
Progress:

e Good progress was being made in 63% (50)

e Satisfactory progress being made in 34% (27)

e Limited progress being made in 2% (2)

Outcome:
e High level of confidence in the achievement of 79% (62)
e Medium level of confidence in the achievement of 20% (16)
e Low level of confidence in the achievement of 1% (1)

Also outlined in the report was a summary of performance against the
Improvement Plan measures, also using the National Strategic Indicators (NSls) and

Page 7



81.

Public Accountability Measures (PAMs). The assessment of actual performance
compared with the previous year’s performance was as follows:

e 59% (58) improved

e 11% (11) maintained the same level of performance

e 30% (30) downturned

Following a question from Councillor Attridge, the Policy and Performance
Manager explained that there had been a downturn in sickness absence in 2014/15
with improvement in both Streetscene and Social Services. On appraisals, the
number that had taken place was higher than what was recorded on the electronic
system with the target for the current year being higher.

Councillor Bithell asked for details on the downturned status of the
achievement measure PSR009a — The average number of calendar days taken to
deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) for children. The Chief Officer (Social
Services) explained that this measure covered a range of services in Social Services
and Housing. The outturn figure was related to one person; the case was extremely
complex with changing needs throughout the process. He reported positively that
there had been an improvement in the time taken by Occupational Therapists (OT’s)
to carry out assessments. The performance would continue to be monitored by the
Social and Health Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Following the question
and response given on the exceptional case, Councillor Shotton requested that such
information be included in the commentary of future reports.

Councillor Shotton asked for details on the downturn in performance on
IPME6M4 — Scale and take-up of the new digital services (no. of visitors) per annum.
The Chief Officer (Governance) explained that the process of making all forms
available electronically had been time consuming. Moving forward, the new website
was being designed in such a way that users would more easily be able to navigate
around the site and find what they were looking for which would raise performance
figures. The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) added that feedback on the
completion of online forms had not be wholly positive. She provided an example of
nursery application forms being online however the back office process had not yet
changed; this was something that was now being looked into and an update would
be provided to Cabinet Members in the near future.

Members welcomed the report and the ease of readability. It would be
submitted to County Council on 20 October.

RESOLVED:

That the 2014/15 Annual Performance Report be endorsed for publication.

OUTCOME AGREEMENT 2014/15

Councillor Mullin provided information on the Outcome Agreement which was
a three year agreement (2013/14 to 2015/16) between the Council and Welsh
Government (WG). It was based on five strategic themes drawn from WG’s
‘Programme for Government’. The assessment was based on two components; (1)
outcomes and (2) corporate governance.

Page 8



82.

The self-assessment revealed full compliance with both parts and subject to
WG concurring with the self-assessment, it was expected that Flintshire would
receive 100% of the grant which was approximately £1.458m.

The Chief Executive explained that WG had written to all Local Authorities to
advise that as part of simplifying funding arrangements, the grant which currently
supported Outcome Agreements would be rolled into the Revenue Support Grant
(RSG) for 2016/17 onward, formally brining the initiative to an end in March 2016.
RESOLVED:

That the progress made against the Outcome Agreement for 2014/15 be noted.

NEW HOMES BUSINESS PLAN 2015/20

Councillor Brown introduced the report which sought approval of the NEW
Homes Business Plan 2015/20. The plan set out the key elements of the company’s
proposed growth plan to increase the number of properties managed and owned as
affordable housing over the next five years.

Twice yearly monitoring of NEW Homes progress against its business plan
was undertaken by the Community and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Councillor Attridge said in its first year of operation the company had
generated a surplus of £18k with the next two years expecting similar surpluses
rising to £0.180m in year three following the growth of the Strategic Housing and
Regeneration Programme (SHARP) development.

The Chief Officer (Governance) clarified that, following information to be
presented by the Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Members could ask
questions of Councillor Attridge in his capacity as Chairman of NEW Homes prior to
him leaving the meeting during the debate and vote which was in line with the
dispensation that had been granted to him by the Standards Committee.

The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) provided details of the progress
reviewed by the Board on the three main portfolio areas against the projections made
in the original Business Plan which were:

e New build units transferred to NEW Homes under Section 106 Planning

Agreement

e Management Offer
e Over 55 Lease Scheme

NEW Homes would seek independent financial and legal advice prior to
approval of new developments to be delivered as part of the SHARP programme and
prior to undertaking any borrowing against existing assets. In addition the Council’s
legal and financial teams would consider each development individually prior to
recommendation to Cabinet for approval. The Chief Officer (Governance) explained
the reason for this approach which could change in the future as the project matured.

Page 9



83.

Councillor Shotton welcomed the report which linked to the Improvement
Priority on Housing. He said Flintshire should shine as a beacon to the rest of Wales
on the innovative and pioneering scheme. He asked if, following the departure of two
Members of the Board due to their conflict of interest with the Planning and
Development Control Committee, had the vacancies been filled? Councillor Attridge
explained that a skills matrix had been sent to Members of the NEW Homes Board to
identify if there were any gaps in specific areas. Following the analysis of that
exercise Members would be contacted to ask for expressions of interest from those
with the required skill set. Following that the vacancies would be filled.

Responding to a question from Councillor Bithell, the Chief Officer
(Community and Enterprise) explained that, in line with the marketing strategy,
display stands would be erected in the entrance of County Hall and within the
Connects centres. Posters would also be placed on the side of Council owned
vehicles.

Councillor Attridge left the meeting at this point.

Councillor Kevin Jones welcome the report and Business Plan and
commented that other authorities were looking at the model used by Flintshire.

RESOLVED:

That the NEW Homes Business Plan 2015/20 be approved, including the intention to
borrow; noting that any proposed developments requiring capital funding will be
brought to Cabinet for specific scheme by scheme approval following approval by
NEW Homes Board.

CHILDREN’S SERVICES INSPECTION REPORT

The Cabinet Member for Social Services presented the findings of the Care
and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) concerning their Inspection of
Children’s Services in Flintshire and set out the action plan of the Council in
response to the report. It was a detailed inspection of services concerning four main
themes:

Theme 1- Access Arrangements

Theme 2- Assessment

Theme 3 — Safeguarding and Care Management

Theme 4 — Leadership and Governance

The report reflected on the many strengths in the service, areas that the
Council needed to secure improvements in the day and assessment model for
children and acknowledged that children’s services had undergone a period of
transition in the last year, understanding the approach of the new senior team.

The Inspection Report would be submitted to the Social and Health Care

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5 November 2015 where the CSSIW would be
in attendance.

Page 10



84.

The Chief Officer (Social Services) reiterated the comments made by the
Cabinet Member adding that the findings included that senior Members and officers
saw safeguarding as a priority for the Council and were committed to developing and
improving the service.

The Council’s response and action plan was appended to the report.

The Chief Executive added that the Inspection Report would also be submitted
to Audit Committee on 27 January 2016. Regular progress updates would be
submitted to the Social Services Programme Board and Informal Cabinet.
RESOLVED:

(@)  That the conclusions of the inspection report be responded to;

(b)  That the action plan be endorsed; and

(c) That the process for monitoring the action plan as laid out in 1.12 of the report
be approved.

REVIEW OF WINTER MAINTENANCE POLICY

Councillor Attridge presented the report which provided an updated Winter
Maintenance Policy, outlining the legislative requirements of providing such a
service, the budget allocation and actual expenditure in complying with the existing

policy.

The changes in levels of service in the updated Winter Maintenance Policy
were outlined in the report. The report had been considered and endorsed by the
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16 September 2015.

In response to a question from Councillor Bithell, Councillor Attridge explained
that the aim was to have a North Wales approach to winter maintenance which would
ensure consistency.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Winter Maintenance Policy and its procedures for delivering the
winter maintenance service be approved;

(b)  That the removal of two rural gritting routes (Cilcain and Hope Mountain
Areas) carried out by contractors that do not meet the criteria required within
the Priority 1 be noted; and

(c) That it be noted that two unclassified roads that have historically been treated
by Denbighshire County Council (DCC) and have been removed from their
Priority 1 gritting routes as part of their savings will not be precautionary gritted
in future and therefore will not be included on Flintshire’s Priority 1 route list.
Removed from DCC as part of savings:

Page 11



85.

86.

e Gwaenysgor Crossroads to the Bryniau (Gwaenysgor)
e Bedlwyn Crossroads — Rhyd y Ceirw (Rhydtalog)

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 4)

The Corporate Finance Manager provided the latest revenue budget
monitoring position for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account.
The position was based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 4 and
projected forward to year end. The projected year end position, as estimated at
Month 4 was:

Council Fund
e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.425m higher than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £4.111m

Housing Revenue Account
e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.002m higher than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.235m

Changes in the revised budget were mainly due to the transfer of budget from
Social Services to Central and Corporate as a result of the one off efficiency reported
in Month 3 in relation to the Independent Living Fund (ILF).

The report provided details on the programme of efficiencies, inflation,
unearmarked reserves and earmarked reserves.

Councillor Kevin Jones said recycling was going through a volatile period with
fluctuating re-cycle sale values which was likely to impact on 2015/16 recycling
income levels for the Council. This would be monitored throughout the year and he
had also raised it with the Minister.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at
31 March 2016 be noted; and

(b)  That the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account be
noted.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 (MONTH 4)

Corporate Finance Manager provided details on the Capital Programme
(Month 4) which had increased by £75.438m in the period, largely due to the impact
of the following:

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Subsidy Buyout (£79.248m);
Rollover from 2014/15 (£5.767m);

Additional Welsh Government (WG) grant funding (£4.223m); and
Community Asset Transfers (CAT’s) (£0.500m).

Page 12



87.

These were offset by:
e A decrease in funding required for 21st Century Schools (£13.850m);
and
e Savings in the allocation to Flintshire Connects projects (£0.521m)

Current expenditure stood at 15.42% of budget (excluding HRA Subsidy

Buyout) with the resources available for funding future capital expenditure currently
c£2.476m.

(a)
(b)

RESOLVED:

That the report be approved; and

That the rollover adjustments be approved.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information item on the actions taken under delegated powers was

submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

Community and Enterprise - Housing

Transfer of 4 No. Properties (Plots 42-45) Inclusive Overlea Drive,
Hawarden from Redrow Homes Limited

To advise on the proposal that the above affordable housing units be
transferred direct to NEW Homes since this best meets housing need. NEW
Homes will enter into a covenant with Redrow that the properties will be used
for the purpose of Affordable Housing.

Streetscene and Transportation

Proposed Off Street Paring Place Order - Buckley

To advise on an unresolved objection received following the advertisement of
the proposed introduction of car parking charges in Buckley off street car
parks.

Proposed Off Street Paring Place Order - Mold

To advise on an unresolved objection received following the advertisement of
the proposed introduction of car parking charges in Mold off street car parks.

People and Resources - Finance

Business Rates Write Offs

Financial Procedure Rules (section 9.6 — Income and Expenditure) stipulate
that any individual debt between the values of £5,000 and £25,000 shall be
reported to the Chief Finance Officer (Corporate Finance Manager / Section
151 Officer) for consideration to write off, in conjunction with the Cabinet
Member for Finance. There are two business accounts where the overall debt
for each company is greater than £5,000 and the write off of these debts is
recommended. The total of these debts is £14,370.87.

Page 13



RESOLVED:
That the actions taken under delegated powers be noted.

88. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were 2 members of the press in attendance.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 11.25am)

Page 14



Agenda ltem 4

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 17" November 2015
Report Subject Approval to Apply to Welsh Government for Suspension
of the Right to Buy in Flintshire
Portfolio Holder Cabinet Member for Housing
Report Author Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks Cabinet agreement to carry out consultation with internal and
external stakeholders as required by Welsh Government (WG) to gain their
approval to support an application to suspend the Right to Buy (RTB) of Council
owned housing in Flintshire.

The consultation process is a mandatory element of the application to WG.

The suspension of RTB could make a significant contribution to ensuring the
continued availability of Council social housing and to maximizing the housing
opportunities available to all households living across Flintshire.

This report provides the rationale for undertaking the application to Welsh
Government, briefly outlining WG policy regarding RTB and provides information
showing the national and local pressures caused by RTB disposals on the supply
of social housing dwellings. Finally, the report proposes a suggested time frame
for the consultation and application process to be delivered.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Cabinet to approve consultation with internal / external Stakeholders with a
view to making an application to Welsh Government to suspend the RTB
in Flintshire.

Page 15



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE RIGHT TO BUY

1.01

The right of a tenant of a Local Authority to buy their home at a discount
has been a feature of social housing for over thirty years. The introduction
of the Right to Buy in 1980 was grounded in UK Government policy at that
time. Increasing home ownership was one of the main reasons for its
introduction although raising money and reducing the cost on the public
purse of maintaining and improving Council housing are also thought to
have been factors.

1.02

The Right to Buy is contained in the Housing Act 1985. It gives most
tenants who have a secure tenancy, usually those who rent from a Local
Authority, the right to buy their home at a discount from the market price. It
is subject to certain conditions and exceptions. Where the landlord owns
the freehold of a house, the tenant has the right to acquire the freehold.
Where the landlord does not own the freehold or the home is a flat, the
right is to be granted a lease on it.

The impact on social housing stock in Wales

1.03

The period between 1980 and the middle of 2007 saw considerable Right
to Buy activity and as a result, a significant shift from social renting to
owner-occupation. In this period, some 134,600 Local Authority homes
were sold to tenants under the Right to Buy scheme.

In the ten years or so from March 2003 to March 2013, the proportion of
dwellings in the social rented sector has fallen from 21 per cent of total
housing stock to 16 per cent.

1.04

As a result, there has been a significant reduction in the national social
housing stock in Wales. In the current financial climate, for housing,
economic and other factors have combined to cause considerable
pressure on the supply of homes. The pressures affect many but the effect
on people whose needs cannot be met by the housing market is
particularly noticeable. Some people cannot afford to buy a home, or to
rent a home from a private landlord. They are dependent on social housing
or some other form of subsidised provision. Social housing is a particularly
important safety net.

1.05

On this basis, a White Paper was published by the Welsh Government in
January 2015 setting out its intention to end the Right to Buy and in Wales.
The White Paper put forward two proposals for public consultation. Both
are aimed at protecting the social housing stock from further reduction:

e changing existing legislation — which will halve the current maximum
discount available to a tenant to who applies to buy their home from
their Council or Housing Association landlord

e developing new legislation — which, if passed by the National

Page 16




Assembly for Wales, will end the Right to Buy and Right to Acquire
for housing associations.

Right to Buy in Flintshire

1.06

Flintshire has lost of 822 Council housing dwellings since 1996 due to
RTB. The cumulative effect on the supply of local social housing in
Flintshire is only now being realised with significantly less social housing
stock available to allocate to people whose needs cannot be met by the
housing market. Increasing open market sale prices, tighter lending
mortgage criteria and increasingly unaffordable rent levels in the private
rented sector have encouraged reliance on the social housing supply to
bridge the affordability gap whilst simultaneously encouraging current
incumbents of social housing to purchase their existing homes.

1.07

The recently jointly commissioned Flintshire and Wrexham Local Housing
Market Assessment (LHMA) has confirmed that housing need for social
housing dwellings is currently outstripping supply and will do so for the
foreseeable future;

¢ An annual shortfall of 246 affordable dwellings across Flintshire;

e The suggested affordable housing tenure split for Flintshire
identified by the assessment is for 56% social/affordable rent and
44% intermediate tenure.

e The LHMA identifies a clear need for smaller two bedroom
properties for under and over 65s;

e Around one third of all households in Flintshire can afford an
intermediate affordable house priced at £100,000 or less (or the
equivalent total housing costs).

1.08

Flintshire Context

1.09

Flintshire County Council is a stock-retaining local authority and currently
has approximately 7,200 Council properties within the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) under its direct management. 88% of tenants voted to stay
with the Council as their landlord in 2012 as part of the Council’'s Housing
Ballot Project. This was the highest turnout in a housing ballot in Wales
with 71% of tenants using their vote.

1.10

Following the outcome of the ballot, the Council has worked proactively
with tenants to develop and modernise the housing management and
maintenance service, with significant improvements being achieved. The
mandate received from tenants has also enabled the Council to develop its
ambitious and substantial stock condition investment programme [Welsh
Housing Quality Standard] and Strategic Housing And Regeneration
Programme (SHARP) respectively.

Flintshire’s Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS)

1.11

From April 2015 Flintshire County Council will be spending £111 million

Page 17




over six years to bring its 7,200 Council homes up to the Welsh Housing
Quality Standard (WHQS). This programme of works will create modern,
efficient, quality homes for Council tenants across the county. It will be
largely funded through the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), with some
prudential borrowing, to ensure that all Council owned homes meet the
WHQS by 2020, which is the date stipulated by Welsh Government.

1.12

Internal improvements to properties will be carried out first, followed by
external improvements such as new windows and then improvements to
the outside of properties including footpaths and fences. There will also be
a large programme of environmental works at locations across the County
following extensive consultation with tenants and local Members.

Strategic Housing And Regeneration Programme (SHARP)

1.13

At Cabinet in September 2014, approval was given to the SHARP to
undertake a major procurement to appoint a development partner, with the
aim of developing 500 houses of which 200 will be new council and 300
will be affordable housing at a range of sites across the county alongside
commissioning a range of linked regeneration initiatives and community
benefits. The Programme will have an initial period of 5 years. The
Programme will be overseen by a Partnership Board whose decisions are
subject to approval by Cabinet.

1.14

The first proposed schemes will take place at The Walks, Flint and site of
the former Custom House School, Connah’s Quay, where a total of 44 new
Council properties will be delivered. These scheme are due to start on site
early in 2015. In addition, a number of additional sites have been identified
by the Council across Fintshire where site assessment and scheme design
work is currently being undertaken to enable further new build properties to
be included in the SHARP Housing Programme.

1.15

Under existing legislation, Council tenants allocated these in these new-
build Council homes would be able to exercise their Right to Buy. These
homes and the rental income streams generated by them would be lost to
the Council in perpetuity and would potentially require the Council to revise
its vision for both the WHQS and SHARP programmes in terms of the level
of investment possible in the existing Council stock, along with the vision
to deliver 50 new Council homes each year for the next five years to meet
local housing need.

Next Steps

1.16

Given that that primary legislation, to end the Right to Buy will not be
introduced following the next Assembly election in 2016, there is the option
for all stock-retaining local authorities to apply to the WG to suspend RTB
in its area through the 2011 Housing (Wales Measure).

1.17

This suspension can be up for a minimum of 5 years and up to a maximum
of 10 years under the current rules. The Authority must consult with all its
tenants beforehand and demonstrate that that demand for social housing
within the area exceeds or is likely to exceed supply and the imbalance is
likely to increase as a result of people exercising their RTB.

Page 18




1.18 | To date 2 Local Authorities, Carmarthenshire and Swansea have applied
to suspend RTB and both have been approved by the WG.

1.19 | With this in mind, Figure 1 sets out a proposed structured consultation with
all Council housing tenants on making an application for the suspension of
the RTB in Flintshire. This will also necessitate working closely with local
housing association partners and all local key stakeholders.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | A project team will be established with representatives from Housing,
Legal, Finance and Policy and Performance teams to oversee and co-
ordinate the delivery of the application and consultation process.

2.02 | A Project Plan, Communications Plan and Risk Register will be developed
and regularly updated during the course of the application and consultation
exercise.

2.03 | The main resource implication for the process will be the consultation with
the tenants. The costs are likely to be c. £25K.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | A key element of the application to suspend RTB is evidence of recorded
and structured consultation with both internal and external stakeholders
listed below.

e Existing Council and Housing Association Tenants
e Flintshire Tenants Federation

e County Council Cabinet

e Community and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee

e Chief Officer Team

e Local Housing Association

e Housing Advisory Panel

e Housing Maintenance Team

e General Public.

3.02 | It is anticipated that the consultation process will commence immediately
subject to approval to carry out consultation with this task being completed
by the end of March 2016.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 It should be recognised that the following needs to be considered and
monitored in consulting to suspend the RTB in Flintshire.

4.02 | Consultation may trigger a potential short term spike in applications to

purchase properties by those eligible to do so therefore the number of

Page 19




future purchase applications need to be carefully monitored and managed.

4.03 | THE WG is proposing to develop new primary legislation to end RTB by
way of a draft bill for consideration by the new government in the next
assembly post May 2016 however there is no guarantee that the future
government would be supportive in suspending or ending RTB.

4.04 | A Risk Register will be developed and regularly updated throughout the
course of the project to identify and manage potential risks.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 - Flintshire Right to Buy— Suspension Application Process

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | http://gov.wales/consultations/housing-and-regeneration/future-of-right-to-
buy/?lang=en
Contact Officer: Clare Budden Chief Officer Community and Enterprise
Telephone: 01352 703800
E-mail: clare.budden@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | The Right to Buy is contained in the Housing Act 1985. It gives most

tenants who have a secure tenancy, usually those who rent from a Local
Authority, the right to buy their home at a discount from the market price.

Preserved Right to Buy - This applies to tenants after a transfer of the
ownership of a Local Authority’s homes to a new Housing Association.

Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) - Flintshire County Council
will be spending £111 million over six years on a major refurbishment and
maintenance programme of works bring its 7,200 Council homes up to the
Welsh Government’s Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS).

Strategic Housing And Regeneration Programme (SHARP) — Flintshire
County Council House Building Programme which will build 500 new
homes (200 Council) and 300 (affordable) new properties across the
Council during the next five years.

Page 20



mailto:clare.budden@flintshire.gov.uk

Appendix 1 Flintshire Right to Buy — Suspension Application Process

Stage of Process

Details / Comments

Consultation

Milestones
Stage 1 — Report to Cabinet Gain formal approval to develop application and to | 17/11/2015
approach Welsh Government.
Stage 2 — Report to Community and Provide opportunity to inform process and raise 09/12/2015
Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny issues.
Committee
Stage 3 — Initial Meeting with Welsh Receive clarification of the level of detail required 20/11/2015
Government Officials within application.
Stage 4 — Develop draft application Develop Business Case, including Flintshire 04/12/2015
and submit to Welsh Government Housing Market Assessment information / SARTH
data / Private Rented Sector date etc.
Stage 5 — Meeting with Welsh Receive feedback on initial draft, including w/c
Government to discuss draft clarification on level of information provided. This 14/12/2015
application will also include proposed consultation plan with
tenants.
Stage 6 — Consultation Exercise with Formal consultation with all Council tenants Between
Tenants informed by early engagement with Flintshire 08/12/2015 -
Tenants Federation. This will include tenant 12/01/2016
workshops, letter to all Council tenants, housing
association consultation etc.
Stage 7 — Further Meeting with Welsh | Receive clarification from Welsh Government on w/c
Government Officials level of consultation undertaken with tenants. 25/01/2016
Stage 8 — Report to Cabinet / Present results of tenants consultation to Cabinet/ | 16/02/2016
Community and Enterprise Overview Community and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny
and Scrutiny Committee / Flintshire Committee and agree submission date of
Tenants Federation application.
Stage 9 — Submission of Application This will be signed off by Cabinet prior to 22/02/2016
submission.
Stage 10 — Confirmation from Welsh Welsh Government will confirm receipt of TBC
Government application passed to application and likely date for Ministerial decision.
Minister for consideration
Stage 11 — Write to Council and Standard letter will be developed to respond to all | TBC
Housing Association tenants new applications received.
submitting RTB / RTA applications
after the date the Minister considering
the Council’s application
Stage 12 — Application approved by The Council Leader / Chief Executive are directly TBC
Minister informed by the Minister of the decision.
Stage 13 — Write to all tenants to give | Confirmation letter sent out to all tenants advising | w/c 28/
them details of the suspension period. | them of details of the outcome of the Consultation | 03/2016

1
Page 21




exercise and details of the suspension process.

2
Page 22



Agenda ltem 5

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 17" November 2015
Report Subject Ageing Well in Flintshire
Portfolio Holder Cabinet Member for Social Services
Report Author Chief Officer (Social Services)
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report provides the background and context for the development of an Ageing
Well in Flintshire Plan required from all Local Authorities by the Older People’s
Commissioner for Wales in conjunction with the Welsh Government (WG) as a key
deliverable against the national Older People’s Strategy for Wales 2013-2023.

In recognition that the population of Flintshire is ageing and people are living
longer the Ageing Well in Flintshire plan provides a framework for developing
activity that will support older people to take control of their lives so they can
maintain their independence and wellbeing and continue to play an active part in
their communities.

Implementation of the Plan will also make a positive contribution in relation to the
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and will evidence Flintshire
County Council’'s commitment to its signing of the Dublin Declaration in February
2014.

RECOMMENDATION

1 To support and agree to the content of the Ageing Well in Flintshire Plan
prior to submission to the Older People’s Commissioner for Wales.

Page 23



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE AGEING WELL IN FLINTSHIRE PLAN

1.01

The Ageing Well in Flintshire Plan (the plan) meets the Older People’s
Commissioner for Wales’ requirement to produce a local Ageing Well plan
by the end of November 2015 in support of the National Strategy for Older
People (2013 — 2023 and the Ageing Well in Wales Programme (the
programme).

1.02

The Older People’s Commissioner introduced the Ageing Well in Wales
Programme in October 2014. The programme recognises the population of
Wales is ageing, people are living longer and whilst many older people can
maintain their health and independence, increasing age is linked to
increasing health problems.

1.03

Central to the programme is a recognition that services such as education,
leisure, housing, transport, community facilities and support to remain in
employment play an essential part in the wellbeing of older people. This
point has recently been reiterated in a recent report published by the
Wales Audit Office (WAO) which stated that “Councils’ strategies and
leadership focus too much on delivery of social services and do not always
recognise the important contribution that other services can make in
supporting and sustaining the independence of older people.”

1.04

The Ageing Well in Flintshire plan identifies key actions in each of the 5
priority areas defined in the Ageing Well in Wales programme that will
support older people to maintain their wellbeing and independence. They
are: Age-Friendly Communities, Falls Prevention, Dementia Supportive
Communities, Opportunities for Learning and Employment, Loneliness and
Isolation.

1.05

The plan provides an initial framework which will evolve over time to reflect
progress and changes in the social, political and funding landscape over
the next 5 years.

1.06

The approach that is being taken is to identify and share good practice,
raise awareness of the public health issues, promote information/ advice/
activities that will enable older people where possible to help themselves.

1.07

Actions have been developed in conjunction with senior officers within the
local authority and where appropriate with external stakeholders.

1.08

Implementation of the plan will be overseen by the Older People’s Strategy
Group' and Health, Wellbeing and Independence Board.

1.09

Implementation of the Plan will contribute to the local authorities response
—to—the—Seeiat—Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 also places

Page 24




emphasis on the importance of prevention in reducing the demand for
high-intensity, high-cost services. In addition, many of the actions will
demonstrate a positive response to the commitment made in signing the
Dublin Declaration.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | No direct financial implications result from the development of this plan.
Actions primarily focus on strengthening partnerships, making best use of
existing resources and sharing good practice.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The plan has been developed with input from key stakeholders within the
local authority and in partner organisations. The 50+ Action Group has
been invited to comment both on the actions identified and the plan’s
presentation.

3.02 | As actions are taken forward and further work identified, consultations with
relevant groups will be carried out as appropriate. For example, as part of
the development of Age-Friendly communities, a process of consultation
with older people and other age groups will be required in order to identify,
plan, implement and evaluate the changes that are required to work
towards becoming Age-Friendly.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Risks

e Lack of support/disengagement from partners
e Financial implications arising within the implementation phase
e Delay in progress at a national level relating to key action areas
4.02 | Mitigation
e Effective communication with key partners to maintain engagement,
including older people themselves
e Focus on positive outcomes and progress being made
e Annual review of actions based on current political, financial and
social environment as well as progress to date
e Respond to opportunities that may arise through close involvement
in the national Ageing Well programme
e Work governed through the multi-agency Health, Wellbeing and
Independence Board
5.00 | APPENDICES

LY
Q
(o]
0]
N
a




5.01

Appendix 1 - Ageing Well in Flintshire plan.

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

Ageing Well in Wales
http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/Libraries/Documents/AWFinalEnglish.pdf

WAOQO Study Supporting the Independence of Older People: Are Councils
Doing Enough
http://www.audit.wales/publications/Independence-of-Older-People

Contact Officer: Helen Jones

Older People’s Strategy Coordinator
Telephone: 01352 701429
E-mail: helen.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

Older People’s Strategy (2013-2023): a ten-year WG Strategy with a
vision to make Wales a great place to grow old. The strategy recognises
that building well-being and resilience is good for individuals and society,
reducing dependence and improving overall health. The strategy sets out
how Welsh Government and its partners will bring about a measurable
improvement in the well-being of older people in Wales.

Dublin Declaration: a public statement of intent to create an age friendly
community through working with other organizations, sharing experiences,
and promoting equal rights and opportunities for older people. Flintshire
County Council signed the Declaration in February 2014.

Older People’s Commissioner for Wales: the Older People’s
Commissioner for Wales is an independent voice and champion for older
people across Wales, standing up and speaking out on their behalf. She
works to ensure that those who are vulnerable and at risk are kept safe
and ensures that all older people have a voice that is heard, that they have
choice and control, that they don'’t feel isolated or discriminated against
and that they receive the support and services they need.

Wales Audit Office: works to support the Auditor General as the public
sector watchdog for Wales. They aim to ensure that the people of Wales
know whether public money is being managed wisely and that public
bodies in Wales understand how to improve outcomes.

Page 26



http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/Libraries/Documents/AWFinalEnglish.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/publications/Independence-of-Older-People
mailto:helen.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Jc dbed

ARTNERSH®

Ageing Well in Flintshire

Draft Action Plan 2016-2020 (V2)

....making Flintshire a good place
to grow older for everyone



Contents

0 =10 o 2
1] (oo 18 o 1] o PSSP 3
Why do We Need @ Plan fOr AGEING WL ... ..ot e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e et et e ettt et et e eeee e aa e eeeeeeaaaaeaaaeeeeee e e e e s e s s s sasssanasa e e eeeaeeeaaaaaaeaeeees 4
FIINISNIre’s AQEING POPUIGLION ... ittt ettt e e e e oo oo o4 4o e s a bbb e ettt ettt e e e e e e o4 4 e e e e R h R b b et e e e £ et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnbebeee e e et e e e eeaeeeeenaaanns 5
(o 1V T o] =T T g F= Eo R oYY oY o T 4 =T o PR 6
[V leTgliCelqTqlo Ie=Talo Mu=To o uulale T aa] o] xedY/=T o L= o] €SP 6
(@ T8 I8 1= 0 0 =0 N F= T 1P 7
(e [l 1= oo |V 0ol a 10 10 Lo 1L (= PP PPTPPRR PP 7
ZgiJU:aIIs ST 1 X0 o 12
%Dementia 10 o) oo ] a (AV =R OFeTa 10 0 (U] a1 1= OO OO 16
4csg)pportunities (o g I=Y=Tq ol o =T aTo I =1 o] 1[0/ 0 4= | AU PRRPPRRPP 20
S o1 =1 [T =TT = o [ £ To] = 11T o PSP PPPRPPPTPPPRPPPPPN: 25

1 October 2015 — V2



Foreword

It is widely recognised and to be celebrated that people are living longer. As a consequence, the population of Wales is ageing and Flintshire’s
population is following this trend. As well as living longer, older people quite rightly expect to continue to live fulfilled lives and to make positive
contributions to their families, communities and the wider economy. As a society, we all benefit significantly from those contributions and as citizens
and providers of services, we all have a responsibility to be part of ensuring that everyone has the opportunity to “age well”

Whilst there is much to be celebrated, we also know that increasing age is linked to increasing health problems for example and that this will have a
significant impact on future demand for both health and social care services.

Long-term medical conditions, frailty, disability, and dementia can all have a major impact on people’s lives. Ensuring that people have the means (be
it financial, social, environmental) to age well and maintain their independence is important, not only to manage the demand on services, but
moreover to safeguard their well-being longer-term.

The Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) and the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) place duties on Local Authorities to work in
partnership to promote the wellbeing of people in our society, without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

U
Wiltst health and social care services are important for maintaining the health and independence of older people, their wellbeing can only be assured
thraugh such things as continued learning, leisure opportunities, quality affordable housing, good transport links and accessible facilities in the local
comwnunity. Working collaboratively with partners to ensure these services and facilities are sustainable in the long term will ensure that not only is
Flifhire a ‘great place to grow older’, but because we want to create opportunities across the life course, it is also a ‘great place to grow up.’

We are pleased to present the work outlined in this Ageing Well in Flintshire Action Plan and in particular to recognise the contributions and
commitment required by our partners who are pivotal in achieving the desired outcome — to improve the wellbeing of people aged 50+ in Flintshire.

Neil Ayling
Chief Officer Social Services

Councillor Christine Jones
Cabinet Member for Social Services, Older People’s Champion

2 October 2015 — V2



Introduction

Launched in October 2014, Ageing Well in Wales is a five-year partnership of national and local government and major public and third sector
agencies in Wales. The overall aim of “Ageing Well” is to ensure there is an improvement in the wellbeing of people aged 50+, focussing on
prevention, making best use of existing services and facilities and being creative in the way they are delivered. It is recognised however that progress
will only be made by working with our communities’ most valuable assets, its people, and so community involvement will be central to much of the
work that will turn plans into reality.

The Ageing Well Programme is hosted and chaired by the Older People’s Commissioner for Wales and is recognised by Welsh Government as a key
tool in the delivery of the Strategy for Older People in Wales' 2013 — 2023.

This action plan begins to outline the work we are planning to do in Flintshire over the next five years as part of this national programme, by identifying
what we will be doing against each of the five priority areas, which are:

e Age-Friendly Communities
Falls Prevention
» Dementia Supportive Communities
® Opportunities for Learning and Employment
8 Loneliness and Isolation

This plan will evolve and be reviewed at least annually in line with new opportunities and learning from work that is taking place across Wales and
through the European programme. Consequently, the plan identifies broad areas of work, the detail of which will be developed as part of the ongoing
implementation and monitoring process over the next five years.

Ageing Well in Wales is being developed at a time when wellbeing is being increasingly recognised in Welsh Government legislation as a fundamental
aspect of people’s lives. The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act for example places a duty on Local Authorities to work in partnership to
promote and improve the Wellbeing of the local population and the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act? seeks to improve the wellbeing of
Wales to ensure that present needs are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

" Implementing this plan will also demonstrate progress on the delivery of the three overarching outcomes within the Strategy for Older People Phase 3, Living Longer, Ageing Well
(Social Resources, Financial Resources and Environmental Resources). Details of the National Strategy for Older People can be found at:
http://gov.wales/topics/health/publications/socialcare/strategies/older/?lang=en

2 http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-bill/?lang=en
3 October 2015 — V2


http://gov.wales/topics/health/publications/socialcare/strategies/older/?lang=en

Why do we need a plan for Ageing Well?

There are over 800,000 people in Wales (over a quarter of the population) aged 50+ and this will rise to over one million people in the next twenty
years. Wales has the highest proportion of people of pensionable age and people over 80 in the UK3. Much is made of the increased demand that
will result from this rise and services will need to adapt and respond to changing needs. However this plan is also founded upon the fact that older
people have a lot to offer local communities, a reality that is often not fully appreciated, valued or indeed exploited for the benefit of both the individual
and the rest of society.

Older people want to “Age Well” — enjoying lives that have value, meaning and purpose, and where they can contribute to their families, communities
and the wider economy. Older people also want to retain their independence and health for as long as possible, allowing them to continue to be
economically and socially active. In supporting older people to achieve these aims, we will need to maximise the use of the resources we have and
make best use of any opportunities that emerge to ensure progress can be made in the face of the economic challenges for both individuals and
organisations.

In developing and implementing this plan, we will continue to recognise that older people are part of a wider community and that as individuals, they
have a diverse range of needs and priorities. It is against the law to discriminate against anyone because of:
age

being or becoming a transsexual person

being married or in a civil partnership

being pregnant or having a child

disability

race including colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin

religion, belief or lack of religion/belief

sex

sexual orientation

e o o o oLearmd

This means in implementing this plan we will ensure we will be mindful of the impact on all these groups and as such all of the work we take forward in
this plan will pay particular reference to their needs and preferences.

3 Older People’s commissioner Local Service Board Briefing 2014/15

4 October 2015 — V2



Flintshire’s Ageing Population

Flintshire has a population of 153,804 (ONS 2014 Mid Year Estimates) with 39.4% (60,622) being aged 50 plus and 19.7% (30,306) being aged 65
and above (Table 1). Data from 2013 reports 49% of people aged over 65 in Flintshire have a limiting long-term illness and 33% rate their health as
fair or poor*. The average life expectancy is 79.0 for males and 82.4 for females compared to 78.2 and 82.2 as an average for Wales as a whole®.

The number of older people in Flintshire is set to rise as demonstrated in figure1 below.

Figure 1: Older People (65+ and 85+) Population Table 1: Flintshire’s older population at 2014
Projections, Flintshire 2011 to 2036
65 years and over  =»=385 years and over 50 - 64 30,31 6
50000 - 65 —-74 17,639
45000 - 75 -84 9,295
40000 - 85 and over 3,372
35000 1 Total 65+ 30,306
30000 -
o 25000 7 Source: ONS 2014 Mid Year Estimates
20000 -
LQ 15000
(D 10000 - M
Y 5000 - e
N

(0] 2012

Source: StatsWales

The population projection for people aged 65 and above in Flintshire is 41,757 by 20316, an increase of over 37% on ONS 2014 mid year estimates.

People are living longer due to better public health and social dynamics, along with improvements in conquering or managing health conditions that
would previously have led to premature death. Population projections indicate there will be a 60% increase in the number of people aged over 75 in
Wales by 20317. This is the age when (historically) more people need critical health and social care services to support them through their latter years,
and provides a huge demand on resources as well as a challenge to local communities and public services. The prevalence of frailty increases

4 Public Health Wales Observatory using Welsh Health Survey data

5 Source: Stats Wales based on ONS 2011 Census

6 Source: 2011-based projections for local authorities in Wales, Welsh Government
7 Source: 2011-based projections for local authorities in Wales, Welsh Government

5 October 2015 — V2



steadily with age and is estimated to affect 25% of people aged over 85. By improving the wellbeing of older people in Flintshire, we aim to support
their continued independence and health, which will not only ensure that people age well, but will delay or even reduce the demand on local services.

How this plan has been written

This action plan has been developed with key stakeholders including older people themselves and its implementation will require the involvement and
discussions with many more. The plan is organised into the five Ageing Well priority areas and outlines the first series of activity we plan to take over
the next five years to make Flintshire a good place to grow old. Where appropriate, the plan cross-references themes in the Strategy for Older People
which will enable reporting to Welsh Government, the Older People’s Commissioner and older people living in Flintshire.

At the end of this document, there is a glossary to explain acronyms or jargon used within this document.

Monitoring and reporting improvements

Th&nulti-agency Older People’s Strategy group will oversee the plan’s implementation, through progress updates and opportunities to add to/amend
ac@ity within the plan. A separate record of key achievements will be maintained to demonstrate good practice and provide opportunities for regional
col@boration. Implementation of the Ageing Well in Flintshire plan is an agreed priority under the revised Single Integrated Plan (SIP) for Flintshire,
and(:)!herefore any barriers to its implementation/progress can be escalated through the governance of the Local Service Board (LSB).

6 October 2015 — V2



Our Themed Plans

1. Age Friendly Communities

Introduction

Age-Friendly Communities was developed from the concept of Age-Friendly Cities launched in 2007 with the publication of the World Health
Organisation’s (WHO) Global Age-Friendly Cities Guide. The Guide identifies eight domains of a city life that could influence the general health and
wellbeing of older people as shown in Diagram 1.

During 2013, the Dublin Declaration on Age-Friendly Cities and communities was launched under the ‘3% @
Irish Presidency of the European Union. In signing the Dublin Declaration in February 2014, Flintshire %, I@‘"”
County Council has made a pledge to become ‘Age-Friendly’ using the eight WHO domains as a 5 % .
framework for development. 3,2‘50(;03;5%@ _ \pa‘@-,aw
"nos®  pge-
All 22 Local Authorities in Wales have signed up to the Dublin Declaration as a significant step towards ot frichdly Reg
the@ational ambition that Wales will become a nation of Age-Friendly Communities. y mﬁ\ﬁﬁg\z\gj\,@sg . Socféff;fg;z?d
Q por g £S5 3% "on
WHBt does an Age-Friendly community look like? 53 “f%
Thge is no one single definition. A place is age-friendly when it helps and enables everyone §§' %}6
(irrespective of age) to stay healthy and active and participate in community activities, treats everyone o5 27
with respect and protects the most vulnerable.
Diagram1
Source: World Health Organisation Age Friendly
Cities Guide

For Flintshire to become age-friendly, we will listen to people to understand what they want and need as they age and recognise that as people in
different communities may have different needs, not all Age-Friendly communities will look the same, even though they may share similar
characteristics.

In order to make progress to becoming age-friendly, each town, village or community in Flintshire will therefore need to demonstrate a process of
consultation with older people and other age groups in order to identify, plan, implement and evaluate the changes that are required.

What we know
There are already a variety of initiatives taking place across Flintshire that have a positive impact on the health and well-being of older people.

7 October 2015 — V2


http://www.who.int/ageing/projects/age_friendly_cities_network/en/
http://www.who.int/ageing/projects/age_friendly_cities_network/en/

Developing age-friendly communities will identify opportunities for sharing models of best practice, making best use of existing resources and
promoting community cohesion, using the eight domains identified by the World Health Organisation as a guide. An explanation of each of the
domains is given below.

Housing
Good quality, affordable, well-designed housing is a key element to older persons’ health and quality of life and whether they are able to age

independently and actively in their community.

Social Participation

Participating in social activity contributes to quality of life, both in terms of practical and emotional support. Leisure, social, cultural and spiritual
activities enable older people to integrate within society and helps them stay engaged, informed and motivated to take part in activities in which they
are valued and needed.

Respect and Social Inclusion
Being valued members of society and able to participate in their communities is important as older people have a wealth of knowledge and experience
to share.

Ci\;ig participation and employment

Vdﬁntary activities and paid employment provide satisfaction, increases health and well-being and maintains social engagement. Society benefits
fro&the knowledge and experience of older people, strengthening intergenerational relationships and offering lifelong learning opportunities.
Cocrr?munication and Information

Staying connected with family and friends, news and events is important, as is timely and easy access to information and advice. Access to
technology and computers can play an important part.

Community Support and Health Services
Accessible and affordable community, social and health services are crucial for staying healthy and independent.

Outdoor spaces and the built environment
A community that is clean and well-maintained with safe pedestrian routes and accessible buildings and outdoor spaces will support older people to
maintain their independence and promote good health and wellbeing.

Transportation
Accessible and affordable public transport is key to ensuing older people are able to age actively, remain engaged with their community and access
services and leisure facilities.

8 October 2015 — V2



How will Age Friendly Communities make a difference to the wellbeing of older people?

o¢ abed

POSTCARD FROM THE FUTURE

Dear Carol

There have been some more good changes in the village since T
wrote o you last, and it's had a big impact onmy life.

Do you remember I plucked up the courage to attend the
community meeting in the village hall? Well, T can't believe T
actually had some good ideas and the community is working
together to put some of them in place. That big group of boys
who always used to hang around outside the village hall on youth
club nights has been helping to make a community garden and last
week we had our first garden party there. Some of the children
had baked cakes in the After School Club, and the older ones
from the High School served tea and coffee.

We now have a weekly games night in the village hall and we play
some of our old favaurites like beetle drive, scrabble and
dominoes as well as bingo which is a big hit with the teenagersl
T've just come home froma session on how to use a tablet
computer run by the Youth Club. T can't believe you cando so
much on one of those little screens. T've just found out how to
use 'Skype'and I've been able to speak with Emma and the
children and SEE them af the SAME TIME! It's lovely because T
don't get fo see them very often since they moved to
Manchester. The youngsters at the Youth Club were very patient
with me as I didn't have a clue and found it a little scary at first.
Now I can't wait for next week's session.

I'm so busy now,and have much more confidence, and the best
thing is, the boys outside the Youth Club now say hello Yo me and
have even helped me carry my shopping home.

Hope yaur family is well

Best wishes

Maureen

Scenes from North Wales

Mrs Carol Brown
Any road
Any town
County
Post Code

Disclaimer:

This ‘postcard from the future’ exists by way of example
for traming purposes and no guarantee is made that the
services identified will be available

In the future.

October 2015 - V2



Theme 1: Age-Friendly (AF) Communities

Priority 1:To make Wales a Nation of Age-Friendly Communities
Priority 2: Local people of all ages are actively involved in the creation and development of their age-friendly community
Priority 3: Local Government supports the development of Age-Friendly Communities and intergenerational practice

What we will do in Flintshire National Lead / Key How we will know if we are Milestones

OPS Contributor(s) succeeding

reference
Define What is meant as an Age-Friendly Community | Living in the | OPS Co-ordinator | List of reference sites/examples | Engagement work
(AFC) Community of best practice. to begin January
Research examples/best practice from the rest of Wales OP Engagement 2016
and Europe Diversity Worker No./range of engagement

activities One community

Consult with individuals and groups (of all ages) to Shared Partners working in working towards
identify priorities for Age-Friendly Communities in spaces and with Evidence that views gathered Age-Friendly (Mar

Flipsshire, ensuring that engagement represents the
di\z%se population of Flintshire

Su@port the development of Age Friendly
Communities (AFC) in Flintshire

Inform and promote the development of AFCs with Local
Authority service heads and partners (including Town &
Community Councils)

Raise awareness of the needs of older people for
inclusion in strategic planning (e.g. Housing, Transport,
Streetscene Services Local Development Plan, Flint
Regeneration)

Identify and promote resources to support professionals,
to implement an age-friendly approach to strategic
planning & implementation

communities

Flintshire residents

are representative of the whole
population of Flintshire

2017)

OPS Co-ordinator

OP Engagement
Worker

OP Champion

Ageing Well Expert
Advisory Group

Workforce
Development Mgr,
FCC

National leads for

No. of Towns, villages
committed to become ‘Age-
Friendly’

OP representation on key
strategic planning groups

Actions in appropriate
strategy/planning documents

Resources identified and shared
with partners.

Age Awareness training
identified and included in staff

First phase of
communication
commences with
key partners —
January 2016

Test site working
towards Age-
friendly. A
number of key
milestones to be
determined up to
Mar 2017

10

October 2015 - V2




What we will do in Flintshire National Lead / Key How we will know if we are Milestones
OPS Contributor(s) succeeding
reference

Investigate training opportunities to challenge people’s this work stream training

perceptions about ageing

Setup a working group to develop a ‘test site’ for Age- ‘test site’ working towards being

Friendly development Age Friendly

Map existing community assets — (parks, community Community assets mapping

centres, churches, experience, skills, knowledge etc.) exercise completed for ‘test site’

Improve access to information/ advice to support Information | Single Point of No of local groups registered SPoA fully

older people to age well. & Advice Access (SPoA) onto SPoA Directory of Services | operational for

Improve access to information and advice through Single Project Lead professional and

Point of Access (SPoA) implementation Housing No of enquiries/referrals through | public (Apr 2016)

Community Based | SPoA

Promote the range of housing options available to Energy Accommodation Housing/energy

Efficiency Support, FCC Range of housing options advice services

sugort older people to make decisions about where they
liv

oD
Pr@ote the services available to support older people to

North East Wales
(NEW) Homes

No. of people supported to move
home

promoted through
SPoA Directory of
services (Apr

move home 2016)
Energy Advice No. of homes accessing energy
Provide information and advice to older people around Services, FCC efficiency improvement schemes
energy efficiency through “Nest” - WG Fuel
Poverty Eradication Programme
Establish Age-Friendly champions in local OPS Coordinator | Role of Age-Friendly Champion | AF Champion

communities
Research best practice and engage with older people to
define the role of the Age-Friendly champion

Identify Age-Friendly champions within communities

OP Engagement
worker

50+ Action Group

defined for each AF community

Age-Friendly Champion
identified for each local
community

identified for ‘test
site’ (Mar 2017)

11

October 2015 - V2




2. Falls Prevention

Introduction

Falls prevention is a key issue in the improvement of health and wellbeing amongst older people. Falls are a major cause of disability and death in
older people and can have a significant impact on their wellbeing through loss of confidence and independence.

In 2012, a multiagency and multi-sector project was established in North Wales to develop an evidence based approach to inform the development of
local falls prevention services and interventions across a range of settings. This work has resulted in the development of 3 service models for

prevention and early intervention for falls in relation to older people living in their own homes in the community; older people in hospital and older
people living in care homes.

Each of these service models provides a focus on:
e Early identification of those at highest risk of falling
e Comprehensive assessment of individual risk factors (Multifactoral Risk Assessment)
e Timely access to a range of interventions to reduce identified risk factors

Worg across partnership agencies is currently ongoing to ensure that these evidence based service models are implemented within the county.
Q

Wl'l'%t we know:
@ The cost of falls to individuals, families and society is significant resulting from pain, disability, loss of confidence, acute and longer term NHS
treatment, demand for social care support (often in the longer term) etc.
Falls are preventable and there is a strong evidence base about what works.
Everyone can play a role in preventing falls
Investing in falls prevention has a short term as well as long term financial impact
As the number of older people rises, the population at risk of falling also rises.

12 October 2015 — V2



How will Falls Prevention make a difference to the wellbeing of older people?

Of abed

POSTCARD FROM THE FUTURE

Dear Sue
Thank you for the lovely card and flowers you sent for my
birthday, and especially the advice about mum's falls.

Mum has fallena few times but she wasn't telling me as she didn't
want me to worry, but I knew something was up because she was
relying on that stick mere and more and she was hardly leaving
the house. I finally persuaded mum to see the Doctor and she
was referred to that service you told me about for a falls
assessment. Anyway, mum has had her medication reviewed and
she has been attending a falls class.

AT first, she wouldn't go to the classes, so T had to go with her,
but after a couple of weeks she started to go on her ownand she
even looks forward to the classes. She's made a few friends and
they make it a bit of a social event as they go for a coffee and
sandwich afferwards.

Tt's made a big dif ference already. Mum is going out mere and
she's started to leave the stick behind so I know she's getting
her confidence back. It's made a dif ference To me too - mum
hasn't fallen for a few weeks and I'm not worrying about mum
losing her independence and being stuck at home on her own.

When the falls class finishes mum is Talking about joining a local
walking group with a few others in The class. The instructor has
convinced them that if they stay active it will keep them healthy
and help prevent further falls.

Hope your family is well
Best wishes
Jane

Scenes from North Wales

Mrs Sue White
Any road
Any town
County
Post Code

Disclaimer:

This ‘postcard from the future’ exists by way of example
for training purposes and no guarantee is made that the
services identified will be available

In the future.

13

October 2015 - V2



Theme 2: Falls Prevention

Priority 1: Older People and their carers understand what causes them to fall and can minimise their risk
Priority 2: Local Knowledge of falls: levels of early identification, preventative interventions for assessment and future development
Priority 3: Falls prevention is integrated into other OP Health and Social Care Programmes

What we will do in Flintshire

National
OPS
Reference

Lead/ Key
contributor

How we will know if we are
succeeding

Milestones

Raise awareness and minimise the risk of falls amongst
older people
Use and promote national resources (in development) using
mechanisms including:

¢ Single Point of Access

Resources to
be developed
Falls

Coordinator

No. of campaigns promoted
No. of events attended

No. of falls awareness/training

Promotion of Public
Awareness
Campaign “Steady
On” (Autumn 2015)

e Existing communication networks National sessions held; pre and post Falls Awareness
@ Local events groups “training” evaluation to stand at
'-8 Contacts with older people at risk measure increase in International Day for
a BCUHB knowledge OP event (Oct
Seek opportunities to raise awareness/deliver training to local 2015)
health and social care professionals and others to promote FCC
the use of brief intervention when it is developed (e.g. care Develop /
workers, fire service, voluntary sector) implement of
training plan (Mar
Contribute to any evaluation frameworks developed nationally 2017)
Implement the North Wales Falls Service Models for Falls Leaflets distributed to key Leaflets distributed

community and residential settings.
Develop and distribute leaflet to promote falls service and
Falls Risk Assessment Tool (FRAT)

Monitor the implementation of the falls service models and
identify opportunities for improvement

Coordinator

BCUHB

FCC

Care Home
Providers

stakeholders; increase in
number of referrals

Level of compliance with the
service models

(Mar 2016)

Key actions for
improvement
prioritised and local
plan agreed with
key stakeholders
(Mar 2017)

14

October 2015 - V2




What we will do in Flintshire National Lead/ Key How we will know if we are Milestones
OPS contributor succeeding
Reference
Integrate falls prevention into other older people Health Social Falls No. of programmes that Local programmes
and Social Care Programmes Resources: Coordinator | integrate falls within existing identified (Mar
Identify local programmes where falls prevention could be Healthy services 2016)
integrated to provide an holistic approach (e.g. carers, Ageing —
dementia, extra care) promote good No. of health promoting Community based
physical, activities in communities activities identified
Identify community based activities for signposting to maintain | mental and across Flintshire (June 2016) CD out
health and strength on discharge from falls service. emotional of office until 3/9
health and No. of evidence based
Work with providers of community based activities to support | wellbeing activities in communities

the development of evidence based activities
(funding/sustainability)

across Flintshire

2y abed

15

October 2015 - V2




3. Dementia Supportive Communities

Introduction

What is Dementia?
Dementia is a debilitating condition (and not a part of natural ageing) which describes a collection of symptoms,
including a decline in memory, reasoning and communication skills and a gradual loss of skills needed to carry out daily
activities — includes Alzheimer’s and a range of other conditions such as vascular dementia. (Alzheimer’s Society 2007)

The number of older people in North Wales is rising rapidly; the 65+ age group is predicted to increase by 42% between 2013 and 2031 and those
aged 85+ is expected to increase by more than 80% by 203128. In 2012 there were 1,806 people aged 65 and over with a formal diagnosis of dementia
in Flintshire, this is projected to increase by 26%?° from 2013 to 2020. Growth in the number of people living with dementia means an increase in the
number of carers. Caring for a person with dementia can be difficult and demanding, particularly as the illness develops. It has been found that if
carers are supported and receive counselling at the point of diagnosis a care home placement can be prevented in 28% of cases.°

W we know

Towards the end of 2013, a number of listening events were held across Flintshire to gain the views of older people on dementia services and the
typ% of service that they would wish to have in the future. These include:

more fully supported care at home

facilities for home-based assessments

increasing awareness about dementia including support, access to information and advice
training for healthcare professionals, domicilliary and residential care staff

therapies and activities training and awareness for families and carers

improvements in diagnosis and referral including self-referral

improved access to facilities (healthcare and services)

reduce the stigma of memory loss, promote dignity and respect

oooooosvb

Whilst no one would choose to experience Dementia, many people who experience Dementia go on to do amazing and fulfilling things in their lives. It
is therefore important to recognise that Dementia is only a part of a person not the whole. In Flintshire we want people living with Dementia to be able
to live fulfilled and meaningful lives, to feel safe and be supported in their communities and wherever the “dementia road “may take them, to be sure

8 Source: 2011-based projections for local authorities in Wales, Welsh Government
9 DaffodilCymru
10 National Carers Strategy UK

16 October 2015 — V2



there will be care and support services flexible enough to meet their unique wishes and needs. We have developed an action plan (Integrated Health
and Social Care Dementia Action Plan) to ensure that people living with dementia have access to high quality person centred Dementia care in the
most appropriate settings to meet their needs.

How will Dementia Supportive Communities make a difference to the wellbeing of older people?

POSTCARD FROM THE FUTURE

Dear Gwenda

Thank you for your lovely card and kind words of encouragement.
T woke up this morning and fold myself 'T'm going To have a good
day' and it's started of f well with this postcard to you.

Since my diagnosis I have spent a lot of time worrying, but T had
a really good chat with the Occupationa Therapist who came o
see me and I realise it's not all doom and gloom.

I didn't realise how common dementia is, and how many things
there are to support people like me. On a good day, I'm fine, but .
on days that are not so good, T have struggled to do the smallest Mrls Gwenda Davl es
task . This used to worry me and made me frightened to go out,
but now I am much mere confident.

My local town is Dementia Friendly, and I feel quite safe. Every

week T go to the local shops knowing support is there if T need it, A ny r.oad
and there is a memory café I go to once a month. I like it when
we have singing sessions, I seem to be able o remember the
words of all my favourite songs. Now I have my 'Buddi' I can take A ny Town
Rusty for a walk again, I really missed doing this when the
regular route became unfamiliar, but now if I feel disorientated
I just press the alarm and someone supports me. Most of the Cou nTy
time I'm Ok though.

Jim and T are much better with each other Too. We were really
getting on each other's nerves because he wouldn't let me out of

his sight and he didn't sleep very well either in case I gotup in POST COde'
the night To go out shopping or clean the house. He now
understands me more.

y abed

Of course I still worry about the future, but whilst I'm having

good days like this, I know lifeis definitely worth living. . DiSCFaHJT]Ef’..'

Hope your family is well This ‘postcard from the future’ exists by way of example
Best wishes for training purposes and no guarantee is made that the
Megan services identified will be available

In the future.

Scenes from North Wales

17 October 2015 — V2



Theme 3: Dementia Supportive Communities

Priority 1: People in Flintshire affected by dementia feel confident, valued and understood
Priority 2 : Improve diagnosis across Flintshire and timely support before, during and after diagnosis
Priority 3 : Enhanced education, training, information and advice around Dementia is established

What we will do in Flintshire National OPS | Responsible How we will know if we Milestones
reference person / Key are succeeding
contributor(s)
Develop an approach for supporting people affected by | Healthy Commissioning | Actions within the First Dementia
dementia Ageing — Manager, FCC Dementia plan are being Friendly (DF)
Implement Flintshire integrated Health and Social Care Promote taken forward. Community
Dementia Plan physical, BCUHB lead for (Mar 2017)
mental and dementia N Wales commissioning
Contribute to a regional approach to commissioning. emotional commissioning | statement 2 further DF
wellbeing Communities
W(ﬁ with partners to support local communities to become Community No. of Communities (Mar 2018)
Dégentia Friendly (DF) based partners working towards being DF
&
Encourage and support local communities to become Living in the Social Services No. of businesses, Training delivered
‘Dementia Friendly’ (DF) Community - partners, community to community
Raise awareness of Alzheimer Society Dementia Friends and | older people Alzheimer’s representatives DF trained, | groups/businesses
promote training opportunities to local business, community are able to Society, in two communities
groups, community services etc. participate in No. of communities (Mar 2017)
and access OPS Co-ordinator | delivering DF activity
Identify appropriate awareness training for front line staff amenities/ Training delivered
across all services including Social Services, Leisure, services FCC Training No. of frontline staff DF to frontline staff in
Housing, Environment, Transport etc. Shared spaces | Managers trained across services social services and
- older people housing (Mar
Work with local Alzheimer’s Society to develop a local find public Alzheimer’s’ No of DF organisations 2017)
directory of Dementia Friendly organisations, communities places Society
etc. welcoming, List of Flintshire
safe and organisations that

18

October 2015 - V2




What we will do in Flintshire

National OPS

Responsible

How we will know if we

Milestones

reference person / Key are succeeding
contributor(s)
accessible have received DF
training (Mar 2017)

Support partners to improve assessment, diagnosis and Commissioning No of GP practices where | 36 GP Practices
care Manager, FCC awareness raising points promoted
Raise awareness of the symptoms of dementia through have been held. Dementia
information points at GP practices, Community Psychiatric Primary Care awareness (Jun
Nurses, Social Workers, Dementia support workers providers No. of Dementia Support 2016)
(Integrated Health and social Care Dementia Plan) Workers (DSW)

Social Services Dementia services
Identify local services to support people with dementia No of referrals to Flintshire | registered on
(including gaps in provision) Alzheimer’s’ memory Clinics SPoA Directory of

Society Services (Jun
Wengs with 3rd party providers to increase number/range of No of services supporting | 2016)
sefices/activities to support people with dementia OPS Co-ordinator | people with dementia and

Q :
o) their carers

Prgmide information and advice about services to support FLVC
pe&Ple with memory problems and their carers. Increase in number/range

Communities of services/activities

First

No of referrals to dementia

SPoA Team services
Identify and promote opportunities for prevention Healthy OPS Co-ordinator | No. of health promotion Ongoing
Support the promotion of key Public Health messages Ageing campaigns supported.

Wellbeing &
Partnership Lead

Public Health
Wales

19

October 2015 - V2




4. Opportunities for Learning and Employment

Introduction

The County is a major economic driver for North Wales and North West England and is host to one of the largest concentrations of manufacturing
employment in the UK. Through the Deeside Enterprise Zone, up to 7,000 new employment opportunities are forecast for the County and the
challenge for the future is to ensure that economically inactive residents are able to benefit from this opportunity.

The proportion of 50-64 year olds claiming Jobseekers Allowance (JSA) in Flintshire is 1.2% of 50-64 compared to 3.3% of 18-24 year olds'! . The
activity rate for the working age population in Flintshire was 77.7% for the year up to December 2013, but the activity rate for the 50-64 age group was
just 40.6%'2 demonstrating there is a significant number of people in this age group neither in employment or defined as unemployed. Older people
are also more likely to have low skill levels than other workers. In Flintshire 11.8% of 50-64 year olds hold no qualifications compared to 7.7% for the
working age population as a whole'3.

Ageing Well in Wales identifies the need to prioritise opportunities for employment and new skills for older people in order to:
e avoid premature withdrawal from the labour market
enable older people to exercise their right to participate in the labour market
-_8 enable older people to benefit from the health and wellbeing that employment can promote' .

D
Oldmr people face particular challenges in entering or maintaining employment. These include:
Employer perceptions of older workers
Skills and qualifications
Caring responsibilities
Older people are also more likely to be managing a long term health condition or disability.

e o o o

The rapid introduction of new technologies has led to a decline in lower skilled employment opportunities. Older adult's employment has become
concentrated into declining sectors leading to a mismatch between their skills and those of expanding sectors. They are also less likely to possess
qualifications or to participate in training particularly if they are not in employment. This emphasises the importance of informal and community based
learning provision to re-engage older people with learning. Learning not only improves employment opportunities but also enhances social inclusion
and contributes to personal wellbeing. Continued learning can also increase resilience through financial and digital inclusion.

11 Office for National Statistics October 2014

12 Office for National Statistics December 2013

13 Office for National Statistics annual population survey December 2013
14 Manchester Equal Opportunities Commission 2005

20 October 2015 — V2



What we know

With the economic downturn, retirement has become less affordable. Providing older people with the opportunity to remain in work or to re-enter the
labour market is becoming increasingly important, particularly since poverty in later life is specifically associated with high levels of social isolation,
poor health, insufficient social care, poor housing and lack of access to good financial advice and support's. A significant proportion of older people
have a role caring for others. In Flintshire 6,572 individuals aged 50-64 are carers, with 1,302 providing more than 50 hours each week. This can bring
major challenges in terms of participation in the labour market as well as to their health and wellbeing. Continued participation in employment or
volunteering is particularly important to reduce the risk of isolation to which carers may be more vulnerable.

There are a number of initiatives in Flintshire that support people into training and employment. Whilst these are open to all adults who are not in
employment, education or training (NEET), they are predominantly accessed by younger adults. Support into Employment projects help people to
develop employment skills and gain work including CV production, job searches, application forms, gaining relevant IT skills to increase employability
and promote Digital Inclusion. Community Education projects provide informal and formal education opportunities and assistance to overcome any
barriers hampering involvement, such as poor literacy/numeracy skills. Participants are supported and signposted to access further education
opportunities, as well as providing information on voluntary work and placement opportunities to further their development.

InfQEal learning opportunities and taster sessions are organised across the County by partners including voluntary organisations. These have
ino@ded ‘Learning for Health’ (Communities First), Digital Inclusion (Communities 2.0), Welsh language classes (Coleg Cambria/
ww@®.learncymraeg.org), and a range of art and crafts, singing, exercise classes and taster sessions.

»
Thgbniversity of the Third Age (U3A) is an international self-help organisation for retired and semi-retired people, which provides educational,
creative and leisure opportunities in lifelong learning. Flintshire U3A'6 is an association of groups, which meet to offer a wide variety of activities and
interests. The meetings also provide opportunities to make new friends, share interests and develop new skills in an informal and friendly atmosphere.

15 Older People Strategy for Wales 2013-23
16 http://www.flintshire-u3a.co.uk/index.html

21 October 2015 — V2


http://www.learncymraeg.org/
http://www.flintshire-u3a.co.uk/index.html

How will Opportunities for Learning and Employment make a difference to the wellbeing of older people?

61 abed

POSTCARD FROM THE FUTURE

Dear Graham

Thank you for your Good Luck card and words of
encouragement.

T had been in my current job for nearly 20 years and really
needed a new challenge. Career opportunities whenyou get to our
age are few and far between, so when T saw that ad in the local
paper about training opportunities for entrepreneurs I was keen
to find out more.

The training was held in the evenings in the village hall so it was
really handy. There was a real mix an the course as well: some
youngsters who had some really good ideas but ne idea about how
to get them started, a few like me who had been in their jobs for
a long while and wanted to setup on their own,and a few people
who were recently retired.

The course was really good for me, as it helped me to identify my
strengths and weaknesses, and has given me the informationand
tools I need fo take the next steps. I've made some useful
contacts too,and will no doubt keep in fouch over the coming
months as my business develops.

This is quite an exciting fime for me, and it's given me a new lease
of life. Who said "you can't Teach anold dog new tricks!”

T'll keep you posted on progress.
Kind regards,

Bob

Scenes from North Wales

Mr Graham Jones
Any road
Any town
County
Post Code

Disclaimer:

This ‘postcard from the future’ exists by way of example
for training purposes and no guarantee is made that the
services identified will be available

In the future.

22

October 2015 - V2



Theme 4: Opportunities for Learning and Employment

Priority 1: Older people in Flintshire benefit from maximised opportunities for participation
Priority 2: Maximise opportunities for older people in Flintshire to increase their income
Priority 3: Older people are empowered to plan effectively for their future

What we will do in Flintshire

National OPS
reference

Responsible
person / Key
contributor(s)

How we will know if we
are succeeding

Milestones

Increase the number 50+ volunteers

Work with partners to promote opportunities for older people to

volunteer

FLVC
Volunteering
officer

Increase in no. of people
over 50 volunteering
(baseline)

Volunteer stand
at International
Day for OP event
(Oct 2015)

Increase the number of older people continuing their

Learning and

Communities

No of people 50+

Stand promoting

learning and skill development Activities — First leads accessing CF training learning
Increase the number 50+ accessing Communities First (CF) Older people opportunities at
tra@ng can access FCC lifelong No. of people 50+ International Day

Q help with learning accessing college based for OP event (Oct
Wdk with partners to increase/promote the range of courses reskilling and courses, community 2015)
av@ble in local communities retraining Coleg Cambria learning courses (baseline)
Identify/promote local opportunities for education and training OPS Coordinator | Record of education and
(e.g. University of the Third Age, Digital Inclusion) training opportunities

OP Engagement | promoted to OP groups
Research good practice examples and identify opportunities Worker
for local development Examples of good practice
identified
Provide opportunities for people aged 50+ to Employment — | Head of Human No of FCC employees with | OPUS 3 year
increase/maintain their financial independence Older people Resources & caring responsibilities project
Lead by example as an employer to recruit and retain valued who want to Organisational supported through Working | commences (Apr
employees who have caring responsibilities work can Design, FCC and Caring Policy. 2016)
continue to do

Investigate opportunities to extend Communities First models | so and can Economic Opportunities to extend List of Financial
(Support into employment, Communities First Academies) access help Development models identified Inclusion
across Flintshire with reskilling | Mgr, FCC schemes (Mar

23

October 2015 - V2




What we will do in Flintshire National OPS | Responsible How we will know if we Milestones
reference person / Key are succeeding
contributor(s)
and retraining | Regional Needs of older people 2017)
Raise awareness of the needs of people aged 50+ to inform Inactivity Project | reflected in OPUS
the Regional Inactivity Work (Project OPUS) Financial (OPUS) Lead business plan
Inclusion —
Identify and promote existing financial inclusion schemes Older people FCC Policy and Financial inclusion
amongst older people, including benefits and debt advice, can access Performance schemes identified; over
housing advice, financial assessments, welfare rights appropriate 50s Benefit take-up.
financial OP Engagement
Provide outreach services through Communities First (CF), advice and worker Financial inclusion
Flintshire Connects, Citizens Advice etc. services schemes
OPS Co-ordinator | advice/signposting through
Flintshire Connects,
CF Lead Communities First
A FCC Customer
Q Services Mgr
Pr&ide access to quality assured information to support | Pensions and | OP Engagement | Government approved List of
OFﬂb plan for their future other income — | Worker schemes identified Government
Identify/promote Government approved schemes e.g. Pension | older people approved
Wise, Citizens Advice have an FCC Community | Quality assured resources | schemes (Mar
adequate Based identified 2017)
Identify quality assured resources to support older people to standard of Accommodation
plan/maintain their financial independence income and Support (CBAS) | No. of people receiving Housing options

Promote the range of housing options to support people to
plan effectively

Contribute to / participate in national programmes to support
older people through economic transitions e.g. retirement
planning e-learning pilot

are receiving
all the financial
benefits to
which they are
entitled

North East Wales
(NEW) Homes

OPS Co-ordinator

support through housing
options

Local implementation of
national programmes

promoted at OP
event (Oct 2015)

24

October 2015 - V2




5. Loneliness and Isolation

Introduction
Loneliness and isolation are cross-cutting issues that can seriously impact on the health and wellbeing of older people in Wales. The terms
‘loneliness’ and ‘isolation’ are often used together but they refer to two different concepts'”:

e |solation refers to separation from social or familial contact, community involvement, or access to services.

e Loneliness is an individual’'s personal sense of lacking these things to the extent that they are wanted or needed.

It is therefore possible to be isolated without being lonely, and to be lonely without being isolated. For example, an older person can be physically
isolated (living alone, not seeing many other people etc.) without feeling lonely. In contrast, older family members and care home residents may not
appear to be physically isolated, but their relationship with the people they live with may not be enough to prevent them from feeling lonely.

What we know:
Both loneliness and isolation appear to increase with age, and among those with long-term health problems. Around 30% of people aged 65+ report
sometimes or often feeling lonely, with this figure rising to almost half in the oldest old (80+)'8. Other risk factors include bereavement, retirement,
beggming a carer, not having access to a car, lower income, physical environment (e.g. lack of public toilets, benches)

(o]
Ev%nce from Public Health England tells us that loneliness is a real health issue, the risk factor being similar to smoking and worse than obesity?. It
is g§o associated with poor mental health and with conditions such as cardiovascular disease, hypertension and dementia.

It is clear that preventing and alleviating loneliness is vital to enabling older people to remain as independent as possible. Lonely individuals are more
likely to:

¢ Visit their GP, have higher use of medication, higher incidence of falls and increased risk factors for long term care (Cohen, 2006)
e Undergo early entry into residential or nursing care (Russell et al, 1997)
e Use accident and emergency services independent of chronic iliness (Geller, Janson, McGovern and Valdini, 1999)

Interventions to reduce social isolation have been based around one-to-one and group activities such as befriending, mentoring, social groups, lunch
clubs, and wider community engagement. There is little documented evidence of the effectiveness of these interventions however research has

7 Age UK Loneliness and Isolation Evidence Review
8 Age UK Loneliness and Isolation Evidence Review
% JRF Neighbourhood Approaches to Loneliness

25 October 2015 — V2



shown that both one-to-one and group initiatives can alleviate feelings of loneliness, reduce symptoms of depression and lead to a reduction in the

use of health services.

How will actions to prevent Loneliness and Isolation make a difference to the wellbeing of older people?

€G abed

POSTCARD FROM THE FUTURE

Dear Daisy

You said T was doing too much and you were right! T thought
keeping busy was making me happy, until I read that article you
sent me from the paper on Loneliness, it really struck a chord.

T had never considered myself lonely as T am so busy and have
many friends, but reading the article I realised, that whilst T
was often helping out in the local charity shep and saw family and
friends regularly, T wasin fact, lonely.

I would spend most of my day in the shop, then the children
would pop in To see me on their way home from work, then when
they had gone... silence.

I found out about this club for men who meet twice a week to
share skills and ideas and make things. They call it a 'Men's Shed',
but we meet in the Community Centre, and all the tools are kept
locked up in a store room. We've made a few things now, which
we've mostly donated To the school o sell at the school fair, but
we recently made a bench for the school playground. Some of
the men bring their grandsons along in the holidays, and it's good
to be able to teach them new skills - it reminds me of when Jack
was young and I used to help him with his school projects.

I still work in the shop, but just twice a week, and the children
come round at the weekends when they have more fime o sit and
chat. It's funny, it used o be them doing all the talking, but now
it's me. And when they're gone.. silence, but T don't mind it any
more.

Give my regards To the family

Best wishes
Mike

Scenes from North Wales

Mrs Daisy Parish
Any road
Any town
County
Post Code

Disclaimer:

This ‘postcard from the future’ exists by way of example
for training purposes and no guarantee is made that the
services identified will be available

In the future.

26

October 2015 - V2



Theme 5: Loneliness and Isolation

Priority 1: Loneliness and isolation are recognised as public health and safety issues in Flintshire
Priority 2: The main causes and factors of loneliness and isolation amongst older people living in Flintshire are identified and understood
Priority 3: The provision of innovative and accessible transport is developed, addressing the impact of changes to life circumstances that

older people face

What we will do in Flintshire

National OPS
reference

Responsible
person / Key
contributor(s)

How we will know if we
are succeeding

Milestones

Raise awareness of the impact of loneliness and
isolation on the health and wellbeing of older
people

Actions to promote health and wellbeing will include
Ion_eUIiness and isolation as a public health issue

Pramote national campaigns/initiatives to raise
awgeness of the impact of loneliness and isolation

SN

Social
Participation —
Older people
enjoy a better
quality of life,
have active
social lives,
unwanted
social isolation
is minimised

Public Health
Wales

OPS Coordinator

Loneliness and isolation
included in health promotion
activity

Local promotion and support
of national campaigns
through local networks,
websites, newsletters,
events

2 Health promotion
events (Mar 2016)

Health and social care information and advice
services address the impact of loneliness and
isolation on people’s wellbeing

Ensure that loneliness and isolation are adopted as
part of the “what matters” conversation

Identify opportunities to provide information and advice
about services that could minimise the risk of someone
becoming lonely/isolated and promote wellbeing, to
include (but not limited to) First Contact (Single Point of
Access), Connects, GPs etc.

Promote 5 ways to wellbeing messages through older
people groups/networks

Single Point of
Access Team

FLVC Directory
of Services Lead,

OPS Coordinator

OP Engagement
Worker

No. of referrals to
social/activity groups

Opportunities to promote
services identified

Older people are familiar
with the 5 Ways to wellbeing
messages

Loneliness and Isolation
adopted as part of the
“‘what matters”
conversation (October
2016)

27

October 2015 - V2




What we will do in Flintshire

National OPS
reference

Responsible
person / Key
contributor(s)

How we will know if we
are succeeding

Milestones

Identify and develop current and potential
interventions that could reduce loneliness and
isolation amongst older people

Research evidence based initiatives to combat
loneliness and isolation and identify opportunities to
develop with partners

OPS Coordinator
FLVC Health &
Social Care
Facilitator

Communities

Opportunities for developing
evidence based initiatives
locally identified

Agreement to use
Loneliness scale to trial in
one service area to measure

Trialling/implementing 1
evidenced based
initiative (Jun 2017)

(Mar 2017)

Assess the use of the ‘Measuring services impact on First Lead it's impact on loneliness
loneliness’ guide to health, social services, third sector
FLVC Health &
Social Care
Facilitator
Identify opportunities for older people to lead full Transport - National OP OP are included in One Minority Ethnic
and active lives to minimise the risk of loneliness Older people Partnership planning/consultation group identified (Mar
Engdre older people have the opportunity to contribute | can access Forum around public/community 2016)
to @scussions around public/community transport affordable and transport
® appropriate OPS Coordinator
Prcgllde support to the Minority Ethnic Elders Advocacy | transport. No of Minority Ethnic groups

(MEEA) Project to raise awareness of the project
amongst local minority groups

Promote Financial inclusion (see Opportunities for
Learning and Employment)

Promote housing advice/support (see Age-Friendly
Communities)

Promote the range of Housing Schemes to ensure
older people are able to make informed choices about
where they live (see Age-Friendly Communities)

Pensions and
other income

Financial
inclusion
Housing -
Older people
are supported
to live in
homes,
communities
suitable for
their needs

MEEA Advocacy
Officer,

OP Engagement
Worker

supported by the project

28

October 2015 - V2




Glossary and Explanatory Notes

Acronyms used in this document

9G abed

29 October 2015 — V2



Agenda ltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!En!g!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 17t November 2015
Report Subject Trades Union Bill
Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Trades Union Bill* (the Bill) was published on 15% July 2015 and sets out
proposed reforms to the law for the roles of Trade Unions.

The Government have undertaken a consultation on the Bill and the consultation
period ended on 9t September. The Bill is proceeding through the parliamentary
process.

A link to the Bill is attached here:
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/cbill/2015-
2016/0058/cbill_2015-20160058_en_1.htm

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To agree a Council position on the Bill.

Page 57



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | KEY ISSUES
1.01 | The main reform within the Bill in summary:
« Industrial action ballots (including ballot participation thresholds);
« Industrial action notices and the length of ballot mandates;
« Picketing; and
« The contribution to political funds from union members.
The Bill also contains provisions enabling legislation to be made limiting
facility time for Trades Union officials in the public sector.
Attached to this report is a copy of the report recently debated at the
Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) Council which outlines the
key changes, key issues and opinion from the Chartered Institute for
Personnel and Development (CIPD).
2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | None directly associated with this report.
3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT
3.01 | As outlined within the report.
4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT
4.01 | As outlined within the report.
5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix 1: WLGA Council report 25t September
6.00 | SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
List of Accessible Background Documents
6.01 | No additional papers.
Contact Officer:  Colin Everett
Telephone: 01352 702101
E-mail: chief.executive@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 58



mailto:chief.executive@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | WLGA - represents the interests of local government and promotes local
democracy in Wales. It represents the 22 local authorities in Wales and the
3 fire and rescue authorities and 3 national park authorities are associate
members.

7.02 | Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD) - the
Professional body for the Human Resource and Training profession.

Page 59




This page is intentionally left blank



WLGA Council Item 10
251 September 2015

THE TRADE UNION BILL

Purpose
1. To inform Members of:

e The various reforms to the law regulating trades unions which are set out in
the Government’s Trades Union Bill* (the Bill) which was published on 15% July
2015;

The consultation undertaken by the Government on the Bill;
CIPD comment on the issues contained within the Bill.

*A link to the Bill is

here: http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/cbill/2015-
2016/0058/cbill 2015-20160058 en 1.htm.)

Outline Content of Bill
2. The main reforms relate to:

Industrial action ballots (including ballot participation thresholds);
Industrial action notices and the length of ballot mandates;
Picketing; and

The contribution to political funds from union members.

3. The Bill also contains provisions enabling legislation to be made limiting facility
time for trades union officials in the public sector.

4. Additionally, on 6 August 2015 the Government announced its intention to include
provisions within the Bill to abolish the practice of ‘check off’ whereby many public
sector workers who are union members have their subscriptions taken directly
from their salaries, administered by their employer. Further information on this
intention is not yet available.

Detail of the Bill’s Provisions
Industrial Action Ballots

5. At present there is no threshold requirement for industrial action ballots. The bill
will change this to require at least 50% of those who were entitled to vote in the
ballot to do so. Where the majority of employees eligible to vote in any ballot are
normally engaged in ‘providing important public services’ (as will be defined in due
course but proposed as being within fire, health, education, transport, border
security and nuclear decommissioning and associated critical ancillary activities in
each), then at least 40% of all those that do vote in the ballot must vote ‘yes’.

Page 61 93



6. Taking an example then, if 100 employees are entitied to vote, and the majority
are engaged in ‘providing important public services’ (or ancillary activities), and
50/100 vote, then 40 of those that vote must vote yes for the action to proceed
lawfully.

Industrial Action Notices and the length of ballot mandates

7. The length of notice of action to the employer to be increased from 7 to 14 days.
Currently a ballot mandate can be relied upon for industrial action for as long as
the relevant trade dispute continues (provided action starts within 4 weeks of the
ballot). The Bill will also introduce a new four month time limit (beginning with the
date the ballot closes) so that the ballot only mandates action within the four
month period. After this if the dispute is not resolved the TU will have to ballot
again if they wish to continue with action.

Picketing

8. There is currently a statutory ACAS Code of Practice on Picketing which lays down
good practice in lawful peaceful picketing. It does not impose any legal obligations
although its contents can be taken into account in relevant legal proceedings. The
Bill will however make many of the Code’s recommendations legally enforceable
including a legal requirement that the trades union must appoint a union official to
supervise the picket (“the picket supervisor”), and places various legal obligations
on the picket supervisor in terms of written authorisation from the union, being
present/readily contactable at all times and wearing an identification armband.

Contribution to political funds from union members

9. The main provision in this respect is that union members will be required to ‘opt in’
to any political fund by way of an opt-in notice procedure.

Trades Union Facility Time

10.The Bill includes a power under which regulations will be able to be made
requiring public sector employers to publish certain information related to facility
time provided to trades union officials, including learning and safety
representatives. This may include numbers of union officials, total amount / % of
the pay bill spent by the employer in paying for facility time, different proportions
of the aggregate amount of facility time spent on different categories of activity
specified under the legislation and facilities provided to union officials.

11.The bill also includes a power to make regulations that could set a limit on the
amount of facility time public sector employers may provide.

The Use of Agency Workers to Cover Industrial Action

12.Currently Regulation 7 of the Conduct of Employment Agencies and Employment
business Regulation 2003 prohibits employment agencies from providing agency
workers to cover the duties of an employee taking part in a strike or other
industrial action. The Government intends to remove that prohibition.

Page 62 94



Consultation on the Bill

13.The government published three consultations* on aspects of the Bill, all of which
closed on 9t September 2015. These were:

e The Use of Agency workers to cover Industrial Action;
e The ballot threshoids in ‘important public services’;
o The intimidation of non-striking workers (particularly in relation to picketing).

*A link to the closed consultations is here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/trade-union-bill

The Use of Agency Workers to Cover Industrial Action

14.The consuitation sought views on how the removal of the prohibition on
Employment Agencies etc. from providing agency workers to cover striking
employees might impact on employment businesses, work seekers, hirers,
employees taking part in industrial action and the wider economy and society.

Ballot Thresholds in 'Important Public Services’

15.The purpose of this consultation as stated by the Government “is to help define
who within the fire, health, education, transport, border security and nuclear
decommissioning sectors is subject to the 40% important public services
threshold”. The Government states it “intends this to be focused on those most
important to avoiding the adverse impacts strike action in these public services can
create”. The consultation does not actually seek views on whether the policy
change is supported by consultees.

The Intimidation of Non-Striking Workers

16. This consultation was primarily related to the provisions in the bill concerning
picketing with a stated “key aim to ensure that workers are better protected from
intimidation”. The government stated that it is “reforming and modernising the
rules relating to picketing and associated protests to ensure they cover social
media, to make sure they apply to protests linked to pickets, and to make clearer
rights and remedies for non-striking workers, the public and businesses as well as
picketers”.

17.The consultation sought views on a requirement for unions to publish their
‘picketing plans’ and an annual report to the Certification Officer of picketing and
associated protest activity. It also sought evidence of intimidatory behaviour
experienced during picketing and protests linked to industrial disputes, and asked
about on gaps and weaknesses in the framework governing these activities and
how they can be remedied, including the case for a new criminal offence of
intimidation on the picket line.

Issues

18.There is a clear and well-documented commitment in local government in Wales to
supporting trades union membership and continuing to work in partnership with

Page 63 95



our trades unions as far as practicable on all relevant matters at both the local and
at a Wales level. For example the Joint Council for Wales has fully acknowledged
the value of proportionate facility time and has written twice to Central
Government in to explain the benefits.

19.1n terms of the recently announced ban on the ‘check off’ system in the public

sector it is interesting to note that Danny Alexander, former Lib Dem Chief
Secretary to the Treasury, wrote all Whitehall departments just over a year ago, to

suggest that trying to abolish check-off is not only unjustified, but also likely to
backfire. He stated:

“Departments should be aware that there is no fiscal case for doing this, as the
Unions have offered to pay any costs associated with check-off, which are in any
case minimal. In addition, the experience of DCLG suggests that any attempt may
ultimately fail as a result of legal action being brought by the unions, at
considerable cost to the public purse.”

"I am therefore writing to Secretaries of State and Permanent Secretaries in their
role as Accounting Officers to make it clear that there is no public policy case to do
this in any department across Whitehall. As such I want to make it clear that any
department that pursues this policy is doing so at their own legal risk...”

20.The WLGA did not respond to the consultations due to the difficuity in obtaining

consensus across local authorities in Wales within the timescale on many of the
issues and changes in the law and their probable impact as detailed within the Bill.

21.However, if members wish to consider taking a general stance on the issues, the

views submitted by the CIPD (Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development -
the Professional body for the Human Resource and Training professionals) in their
response to the consultations would seem apposite, as outlined in their associated
press release (attached at Appendix 1).

Recommendations

22.That members:

Note the content of the report
Consider if they wish to generally endorse the views of the CIPD on the issues

Report cleared by: Clir. Peter Rees

WLGA Employment Spokesperson

Author: Anna Freeman

Tel:

WLGA Director of Employment
02920 468640

E-mail: anna.freeman@wilga.gov.uk

Page 64 96



APPENDIX 1

Proposals on strike laws are a response to yesterday’s
problems, says CIPD

Plans to raise the bar for strike action divert attention from building better, more engaged workforces

The Government's proposals on strike laws are an outdated response to industrial relations issues
currently facing UK employers and could prove counter-productive, according to the CIPD, the
professional body for HR and people development.

In its submission to the Government consultation on the proposals, which closes today (September 9),
the CIPD highlights that proposals are an outdated response to the challenges of the modern workplace.
It says that the number of working days lost through industrial action today stands at less than a tenth
of what it was in the 1980s, dropping from seven million days per year in the 1980s to an average of
670,000 per year between 1990 and 2014.

CIPD surveys of employers and consultation with members indicate that relationships with their trade
unions are generally good. Instead of focusing on ballot thresholds, the CIPD is urging the Government
and organisations to build a better dialogue with their workforce, improve employee engagement and
consider alternative methods of protecting the public from the impact of strike action, such as ‘no-strike
agreements’.

Peter Cheese, chief executive of the CIPD, comments: “Government proposals seem to be targeting
yesterday’s problem instead of addressing the reality of modern workplaces. The number of days lost to
strike action has dropped by over 90% in the last twenty years and industrial action today increasingly
takes the form of protest action rather than all-out strikes making the legislation even less warranted.

“It's time to start talking about prevention rather than cure when it comes to strike action and the public
sector's workforce challenges in particular. Taxpayers’ interests are best served by an efficient, engaged
and productive public sector workforce. We need to see more consultation and ongoing dialogue, and
engagement with, the workforce, rather than the introduction of mechanisms that reflect the industrial
relations challenges of the 1980s. To jump straight to legislating strike activity without considering this
seems to be a significant step back.

“These proposals could also have unintended consequences, for example, by creating more division
and encouraging trade unions to plan for more localised industrial action to maximise support and make
it more likely that the proposed statutory threshold for membership turnout will be met. They may also
lead to an increase in unofficial action, which can be hard for employers, trade unions or Acas to resolve."

On the threshold proposals, Mike Emmott, employee relations adviser at the CIPD, said: “The
new proposals won’t make itimpossible for trade unions to call lawful strikes. They will, however, harden

Page 65 97



attitudes and encourage trade unions to plan smaller, more localised protests to maximise support and
make it more likely that the proposed statutory threshold for membership turnout will be met.”

Commenting on the proposals to tackle intimidation of non-striking workers, Mike Emmott said:
“Intimidation in the course of industrial disputes, including on the picket lines or as part of a wider protest
action, is completely unacceptable. Workers and their families should never be subjected to the kind of
harassment that we saw at Grangemouth in 2013. However, we don't believe that a new criminal offence
needs to be created for this purpose. As the limits on lawful strike action become tighter, we can expect
intimidation to become a more frequent occurrence in relation to industrial disputes. However, we
believe that problems in relation to intimidation in the context of protest action should not, in general, be
a matter for trade union law. The law on protest action should apply equally to trade unions and to other
organisations undertaking protest action.

“There are a number of existing public order offences, including assault, harassment and trespass, which
may be relevant in these situations. The key issue is enforcement, and this is a matter for the police.
The CIPD does, however, support the proposal to strengthen the Picketing Code so that a number of
key aspects, including the appointment of a picketing supervisor, should be legally enforceable.”

Commenting on the proposal to repeal the ban on using agency workers to cover for striking
workers, Mike Emmott said: "There is nothing in existing legislation to stop employers from recruiting
replacement staff, providing they hire them directly and not through an employment agency, but we have
little evidence that employers take this option. Some employers might be interested in recruiting
temporary agency workers to maintain operations during industrial action. However, in most cases they
would find it difficult to recruit suitably qualified workers, and few employment agencies will want to get
involved in industrial disputes.”

ends

CIPD Press Enquiries
Helen Ablett / Katie Flynn
Tel: 020 8612 6400
Email: press@cipd.co.uk

Page 66 98



Agenda ltem 7

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 17" November 2015
Report Subject John Summers High School - Options for Home to
School Transport
Portfolio Holder Cabinet Member for Education & Youth
Report Author Chief Officer (Education & Youth)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

At the meeting on 15" September 2015 Cabinet reaffirmed their commitment to
review in detail options for future home to school transport arrangements for John
Summers High School in the event of school closure.

Four possible options were outlined for further consideration. These are:

Option A: Apply current Home to School Transport Policy (attached as
Appendix 1).

Option B: Apply current Home to School Transport Policy with consideration given
to additional discretionary transport for families on income support who
do not meet the mileage criteria and/or have large family groups over 2
children (in the current year groups) and are between 2-2.5 miles away
from the school.

Option C: Apply discretionary transport arrangements for the full current pupil
cohort to the partnering school (transport from home area).

Option D: Apply discretionary transport arrangements for the full current pupil
cohort to the partnering school (transport provided from Queensferry
campus only).

A ministerial decision regarding closure of the school from 31st August 2017 is
expected in February 2016. By that time there would be 191 pupils on roll,
according to current numbers. Although Hawarden High School would become the
nearest school for some pupils, the majority of pupils within the existing John

Page 67



Summers High School cohort would not gain a place through the admissions
process at Hawarden High as most year groups in that school are already full.
Therefore, Connah’s Quay High School is considered to be the “partnering”
school.

An estimate of likely transport costs has been obtained for four possible transport
options. It is based on the home addresses of the currently anticipated student
cohort.

Individual mileage calculations to Connah’s Quay High School, taking in to account
pupil’s home addresses, have been calculated using the Council’s “Routefinder”
software and applied to each of the four options.

Projected costs should be treated with caution at this stage - although they provide
an idea of likely costs. They are based on current tender prices and can fluctuate
depending on fuel prices, insurance, wages etc. Transport from Riverside Caravan
Park is included in each of the four options as this is considered to be a hazardous
route to any school. Any other potentially hazardous routes would need to be
assessed individually against the criteria if options A or B were agreed.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Cabinet considers each of the four options on transport provision.

2 That Cabinet agrees to support Option C, to apply discretionary transport
arrangements for the full current pupil cohort to the partnering school from
the student’s home area.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE SCHOOL TRANSPORT OPTIONS

1.01 | Option A — Apply current Home to School Policy.

Under this option, free transport would be provided for those living over 3
miles or between 2.5 and 3 miles and in receipt of income support/working
tax credit. Under this option, approximately 140 pupils would be eligible for
free transport.

Advantages Disadvantages Cost
Consistent application of | Excludes approximately | £695/day or
current transport policy | 50 pupils, many of whom | £132.050 per
live over 2 miles from annum

next nearest school

1.02 |Option B - Apply current Home to School Transport Policy with
consideration given to additional discretionary transport for families on
income support who do not meet the mileage criteria and/or have large

Page 68




1.03

1.04

family groups over 2 children (in the current year groups) and are between
2-2.5 miles away from the school. Under this option, approximately 148
pupils would be eligible for free transport.

Advantages Disadvantages Cost

Free transport for Excludes £695/day or
children in large families | approximately 40 £132.050 per
pupils, many of annum
whom live over 2
miles

Option C - Apply discretionary transport arrangements for the full current
pupil cohort to the partnering school (transport from home area).
Approximately 191 pupils would be eligible (all pupils currently on roll).

Advantages Disadvantages Cost
Addressed concerns Different pick £545/day or
expressed by some up/drop off points | £169,100 per
consultees depending on annum

home address
All current pupils Most expensive
eligible option

Option D - Apply discretionary transport arrangements for the full current
pupil cohort to the partnering school (transport provided from Queensferry
campus only). Approximately 191 pupils would be eligible (all pupils
currently on roll).

Advantages Disadvantages Cost
Addressed concerns Pupils would need to £645/day or
expressed by some make own £122,550 per
consultees arrangements to arrive | annum

at Queensferry campus

All current pupils eligible
Least expensive option

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

2.02

2.03

The estimated costs of transport options have been included above based
on preliminary enquiries with transport operators. Actual transport costs
can only be assessed accurately once all families have chosen their
preferred school and numbers of pupils and routes are determined.

There is no specific budget allocated for the increased transport costs
arising from either the closure of the 6" Form at John Summers High
School or the consequences of closure of the school itself.

There is sufficient staff capacity in the Integrated Transport Unit to
determine eligibility and arrange transport provision.

Page 69



file:///T:/School%20Transport

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | No specific consultation is required at this stage. However, once Cabinet
has agreed which transport option is appropriate, parents and pupils will
be made fully aware of their transport entittement in order that they may
make informed decisions in the event that the school closes.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation of the Chief
Officer portfolio business plans and manage these risks in close detail,
with reports being made to Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny at key
stages of decision-taking and, later, performance reporting and evaluation.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 - Home to School Transport Policy T:\Transport Policy 2015-
2016.docx

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Not Applicable
Contact Officer: Gill Yates

Pupil Support Services Manager

Telephone: 01352 704187
E-mail: gill.yates@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Routefinder: a mapping software system integrated in to the school

admissions software which is used to measure distances accurately from
home addresses to the front gate of a school. It measures using the
shortest available route, taking in to account footpaths.

Page 70



file:///T:/Transport%20Policy%202015-2016.docx
file:///T:/Transport%20Policy%202015-2016.docx
mailto:gill.yates@flintshire.gov.uk

Current Transport Policy Appendix 1

The LA is required to determine whether the provision of transport for pupils of statutory school age is
necessary to facilitate the attendance at a designated school of the pupil concerned. If such transport
is deemed necessary, then the transport must be provided free of charge.

Statutory transport provision

The LA provides free transport for children of compulsory school age
(i.e. 5-16yrs) as follows:-
e where a child receiving primary education lives over two miles from the nearest appropriate
school;
e where a child receiving secondary education lives over three miles from the nearest appropriate
school.

The LA also provides free transport for pupils of statutory school age:

o where the route to school is considered to be hazardous by the LA in consultation with the
Environment Directorate;

e where transport to a named school is identified in a pupil’s Statement of Special Educational
Needs. This would normally be on medical or educational grounds and would be deemed
essential in the context of other criteria identified in this policy

e where a child requires transport on medical grounds and no suitable public transport exists;

Other transport provision

Free transport is also provided for pupils of statutory school age:

e where a child whose parents are in receipt of Income Support or Working Tax Credit, resides
more than 2.5 miles from the nearest appropriate school;

¢ to the nearest Welsh medium school under the criteria identified above;

o to the nearest voluntary aided school where the admission to the school is on denominational
grounds, subject to the distance criteria. Consultation with individual schools will take place to
confirm the oversubscription criteria under which pupils are admitted. Suitable evidence of
adherence to the faith of the school such as a baptismal certificate or a letter from a priest may be
requested.

Post-16 Transport

Free transport will be provided for post 16 students living in Flintshire attending a first course of full time
study at a school or college, subject to meeting the 3 mile distance criteria and providing the student is
attending the nearest educational establishment offering the courses they wish to study. Free transport
will be provided to specified sites only. These sites are:
¢ All Secondary School sites within Flintshire offering post-16 courses
e Chester Catholic High School, Coleg Cambria sites at Connah’s Quay, Northop, Wrexham and
Llysfasi (for land based courses only), Prestatyn High School, Rhyl 6, St Brigid’s School, Ysgol
Glan Clwyd, St. Asaph.

Transport will only be provided to an educational establishment which is not the nearest if, in the
judgement of the LA, there is a considerable variation between the student’s course and the course on
offer at the nearer institution. The courses should be at a higher level than the previous one: for example
GCSE retakes would not normally qualify for assistance.

Free transport after the age of 19

Free transport is provided to eligible students who have reached 16 years of age and have not yet
reached the age of 19 on 15t September of the academic year. The free transport will be maintained for

Page 71



students for the length of their initial course even if they reach their 19" birthday before the end of that
course.

Concessionary fares

The LA may provide concessionary transport, at a cost, where a pupil/student does not qualify on the
above criteria but can be placed on an existing contract transport route which has empty seats. In these
circumstances:
e acharge of £55 per term will apply. (This is subject to an annual review)
e concessions may be withdrawn at short notice, with a pro-rata rebate, when seats become
unavailable.

However, under the Transport Act 1985, concessionary fares cannot be made available where public
service transport runs along a school route at convenient times for the start and finish of the school day.
Application forms for concessionary seats can be obtained on www.flintshire.gov.uk/schools/ school
transport or from the Integrated Transport Unit, Tel No: 01352 703243/704636/704532.

Pupils/students with learning difficulties/disabilities

Specialised transport will be provided for pupils/students with learning difficulties and/or disabilities when
specified in the statement of SEN. The LA will consider a pupil’s special educational needs or disability,
irrespective of whether the pupil has a SEN statement, when deciding which is the nearest suitable
school. The transport requirements will depend on individual circumstances and each application will be
considered on its own merits.

When other factors are identified in the statement, e.g. specialist provision, transport may be provided for
young people with learning difficulties and/or disabilities to travel beyond their nearest school/college.
Young people who have severe medical conditions that seriously affect their mobility may be provided
with free transport even though they do not meet the distance criteria. In all cases, the request must be
supported by medical evidence.

Travelling expenses for parents of pupils placed by a Statement of SEN in schools outside
Flintshire

Where such pupils are placed in boarding schools more than 100 miles from home, the LA will assist with
travelling expenses for parents to attend the statutory Annual Review meeting, by the most cost effective
means of:

e arranging transport, or

e making a cash payment (currently 20p per mile), or

e providing a ticket (or cash equivalent) for one or both parents on public transport

Such assistance will also be given when a pupil who normally travels in a vehicle provided for a group, is
unable to travel at the same time as the group because of his/her ill-health. Medical certification will be
required. The LA will not normally assist with travelling expenses for other functions or meetings.

Definition of criteria

Appropriate school criteria

An appropriate school is deemed to be the nearest school which provides education for the relevant age
and ability of a pupil, the nearest Welsh medium school or the nearest Voluntary school.

The LA is not responsible for the cost of transport:

o where parental preference results in a pupil being placed in a school or facility other than the
nearest appropriate school;

Page 72



e to schools maintained by other Authorities where admission to those schools is a result of
parental preference, unless that school is the nearest school.
The Authority operates arrangements with neighbouring authorities for Flintshire pupils whose
nearest appropriate school is outside the Flintshire County boundary;

o of pupils who reside outside Flintshire but who receive their education in Flintshire schools.

Age Criteria
The LA has no legal responsibility to those not deemed entitled to free transport.

e The LA does not provide transport for pupils attending nursery school or nursery classes at the
age of three. Transport is provided from the commencement of the school year in which the child
attains the age of five.

o The LA currently makes provision for pupils above compulsory school age, who qualify, to be
transported free of charge to the nearest appropriate school or college as detailed in the
Transport Policy.

Criteria for the Provision of Escorts

An escort may be provided by the Authority for pupils with a Statement of Special Educational Need, who
qualify for transport under the defined criteria. Provision of escorts will take place after consideration by
relevant officers of the individual needs of the pupils or group of pupils and the nature of the transport
available.

Applying for School and College Transport

If you consider, using the above criteria, your child may qualify for free school transport you will be
required to complete an application form. An application needs to be made at entry to Reception,
Secondary and Post-16 and is not retrospective. You will also be required to re-apply should any of your
circumstances alter during the period your children attend school, or if your child’s course alters.
Application forms are available on www.flintshire.gov.uk/schools/schooltransport or from the
Integrated Transport Unit, Alltami Depot, Mold Road, Flintshire. CH7 6LG (Tel: 01352
703243/704636/704532).

Applications for transport to colleges should be directed to the college concerned (details below).
Applications can be made at any time of year although students are recommended to apply at the end of
the summer term prior to commencing courses in September.

Mode of Transport

In determining the mode of transport required, the following principles will apply:
e the need for specialist transport;
¢ the Additional Needs of a pupil as defined in a pupil’s statement.

In all cases, the efficient use of resources will dictate the mode of transport (subject to the above
conditions). Transport may be provided by means of school contract transport services or existing public
transport services which, together with the type of transport (bus, minibus, train, taxi, etc.) will be dictated
by cost effectiveness. In some cases, one contract bus may transport different pupils to more than one
school site. In exceptional circumstances, a cash payment (currently 20p per mile) may be available for
transporting pupils who meet all the criteria, if deemed by the LA to be more cost effective.

Collection and Return

Transport will normally be to and from bus stops or pick-up points for groups of pupils. It will only be
provided from door-to-door in exceptional circumstances. The maximum distance a pupil is expected to

Page 73



walk to and from pick-up point will depend upon, for example, the age of the child, their individual needs
and the nature of the route they are expected to walk.

Travel Behaviour Code

The Welsh Assembly Government has issued a Travel Behaviour Code which is compulsory for all
learners up to the age of 19. It applies to all modes of travel to and from education institutions. Learners
must comply with the Code whilst travelling to and from their place of learning. Under the Code, travel
arrangements may be withdrawn from learners whose behaviour during the journey to or from school or
college is not of an acceptable standard. The driver will, in accordance with the agreed procedure, report
any incidents of misbehaviour to the LA and Headteacher of the school concerned. Any such incidents
will be investigated and appropriate action taken, if necessary, including suspension from transport.

Smoking on Buses

Smoking is not permitted on any vehicle contracted to the Council for the conveyance of school pupils to
and from school. Any pupils found smoking on school or college buses will be reported for disciplinary
action to be considered.

Parents have responsibility for:

getting their child to and from school where they do not qualify for free school transport;
applying for free transport where their child qualifies;

informing the LA and the school of changed circumstances which may affect transport:
ensuring that their child is ready and waiting for transport at the appropriate time and place. It is
the parent’s responsibility to accompany the child to and from the vehicle;

e ensuring that their child’s behaviour while using school transport is acceptable.

General Transport Enquiries

School Transport

Streetscene & Transportation

Tel: 01352 704532
Email:school.transport@flintshire.gov.uk

Website: www.flintshire.gov.uk/schools/schooltransport

Colleges

Coleg Cambria (Connah’s Quay) Coleg Llandrillo
Kelsterton Road Transport Officer
Connah’s Quay Llandudno Road
Deeside, Rhos on Sea
Flintshire, LL28 4HZ

CH5 4BR Tel: 01492 546666

Tel: 01244 831531

Coleg Cambria (Yale)
Grove Park Road
Wrexham

LL12 7AB

Tel: 01978 311794

Page 74



Agenda ltem 8

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 17" November 2015
Report Subject Changes to Dog Breeding Regulations
Portfolio Holder Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Leisure Services

and Waste Strategy

Report Author Chief Officer (Planning and Environment)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Members of changes to Dog Breeding Regulations and to seek approval
to set an appropriate scheme of delegated authority for the Animal Welfare
(Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

That Members delegate powers under the Animal Welfare (Breeding of
Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014 to the Community Protection Team
Leader — Licensing, and the Licensing Team.

2 That Members adopt the suite of conditions approved by the All Wales
Technical Panel for Animal Health and Welfare

3 That Members delegate all further decisions in relation to conditions to the
Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) with approval by the Cabinet
Member for Public Protection, Leisure Services and Waste Strategy.

4 That Members delegate the decision of the adoption of the fee level to the

Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) with approval by the Cabinet
Member for Public Protection, Leisure Services and Waste Strategy.

Page 75




REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE NEW DOG BREEDING REGULATIONS

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

This report has come to Cabinet to enable Members to agree and approve
an appropriate scheme of delegated authority for the Animal Welfare
(Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014. The question of whether a
function is an Executive function i.e. one for Cabinet, or a Council function
of the Licensing Committee, is determined by either the relevant legislation
itself, or by the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Functions and
Responsibilities) (Wales) Regulations 2007, made by the Welsh
Government. In this instance the legislation is silent on the matter and no
such regulations have been made in respect of the Animal Welfare Act
2006, or the Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014
determining whether the function should be exercisable as an executive or
non-executive function. This means that by virtue of Section 13 of the
Local Government Act 2000 the function by default becomes the
responsibility of an Executive (or Cabinet) under a Local Authority's
executive arrangements.

The Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 has been replaced within Wales by the
(Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014 which came in to force on
30 April 2015. Any person wishing to breed dogs in Wales must obtain a
licence from their Local Authority in compliance with the new regulations
and relevant licence conditions.

Local Authorities will be obliged to have regard to any guidance issued by
Welsh Ministers.

The new regulations specify requirements that must be complied with
before a licence can be issued by the Authority. The legislation covers fee
setting and circumstances under which a licence may be varied,
suspended or revoked. There are rights of appeal to the Magistrate’s Court
against licensing decisions, and a breach of licence condition is also an
offence under the regulations. New powers also allow inspectors to gain
entry and take samples for the purposes of DNA testing of dogs kept at the
premises.

Under the regulations, a person carries on the activity of dog breeding if
they keep on the premises 3 or more breeding bitches and —

(a) Breeds on those premises 3 or more litters of puppies in any 12
month period;

(b) Advertises for sale from those premises a puppy or puppies born
from 3 or more litters of puppies for sale in any 12 month period;

(c) Supplies from those premises a puppy or puppies born from 3 or
more litters of puppies in any 12 month period; or

(d) Advertises a business of breeding or selling puppies from those
premise.

Page 76




1.06

1.07

1.08

1.09

1.10

1.11

Schedule 1 of the regulations establish a set of compulsory conditions
which must be attached to each licence in addition to a Local Authority’s
standard conditions i.e:-

¢ Implementation of an enhancement and enrichment programme by
the breeder, which has been approved by the Local Authority;

e Implementation of a socialisation programme that has been
approved by the Local Authority;

e A requirement that the licence holder must take all reasonable steps
to protect dogs from pain, suffering, injury and disease;

e Set limits in respect of age of mating, frequency and number of
litters;

e Restrictions on change of ownership of puppies until at least 56
days (8 weeks old);

e Requirement to maintain written records for each breeding bitch and
birth of each puppy; and

e Requirement to maintain written records for each puppy at the
licensed premises.

The enhancement and enrichment programme is a document that details
how dogs will have the opportunity to express normal behaviour. The
socialisation programme is a document detailing how puppies will be
introduced to human handling, domestic environments, play and how they
will be prepared for separation from the dam.

In order to deal efficiently with applications and animal welfare issues, it is
proposed that the powers listed below be delegated to both the
Community Protection Team Leader — Licensing, and the Licensing Team:

Power to grant a licence

Power to refuse a licence

Power to renew a licence

Power to vary a licence

Power to vary a licence with immediate effect
Power to impose conditions

Power to suspend a licence

Power to suspend a licence with immediate effect
Power to reinstate a suspended licence

Power to revoke a licence

The All Wales Technical Panel for Animal Health and Welfare has been
consulting local authorities in Wales on an appropriate suite of conditions
to ensure compliance with these regulations.

Appendix A shows these conditions. The mandatory conditions are
numbered 1 to 9. It is recommended that Members agree to adopt the
additional conditions agreed by the Technical Panel, shown as numbers
10 to 19. All conditions are made in relation to promoting the health and
welfare of any animal affected by this licensing regime.

It is proposed that Members should delegate the decision on adopting
further conditions or making changes to conditions to the Chief Officer for

Page 77




Planning and Environment with approval by the Cabinet Member for Public
Protection, Leisure Services and Waste Strategy.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 In recognition that the work involved in both administration and compliance
checking of these new Regulations will be greater than under the current
regime, the proposed licence fee will as such reflect appropriately any
additional anticipated and actual costs, and will therefore enable this
function to be fully cost neutral.

2.02 | It is proposed that Members delegate the decision of the adoption of the
fee level to the Chief Officer for Planning and Environment with approval
by the Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Leisure Services and Waste
Strategy.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | There is no requirement for consultation on this item.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Not applicable.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A - Mandatory conditions of licence including the additional suite
of conditions promoted by the All Wales Technical Panel for Animal Health
and Welfare.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | The Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3266/part/2/made
Contact Officer: Gemma Potter

Community Protection Team Leader - Licensing
Telephone: 01352 703371
E-mail: gemma.potter@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Enhancement and Enrichment Programme: a document prepared by

dog breeders to ensure the wellbeing of any animals covered by the
licence.

Page 78



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3266/part/2/made
mailto:gemma.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

7.02 | Socialisation Programme: a document prepared by the breeder to
ensure that any puppies are prepared for socialisation with humans and
other animals.

7.03 | Dam: the breeding bitch who has delivered puppies.

7.04 | The All Wales Technical Panel for Animal Health and Welfare: a Panel

of local authority officers who are experts in the field of animal health and
welfare.

Page 79




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A
Flintshire County Council

Licensing Conditions for Dog Breeders

The Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014

|18 8bed

Index

Condition 1: Enhancement and Enrichment

Condition 2: Socialisation

Condition 3: Health

Condition 4: Mating

Condition 5: Change of ownership of a puppy

Condition 6: Breeding bitch record requirements

Condition 7: Puppy record requirements

Condition 8: Grant or renewal of licences - Maximum amount of dogs kept
Condition 9: Grant or renewal of licences - Staff to dog ratio

Condition 10: Size of Quarters

Condition 11: Whelping Facilities

Condition 12: Supervision

Condition 13: Health Status of dogs

Condition 14: Dog ldentification

Condition 15: Responsible Breeding

Condition 16: Strategy for the retirement of breeding bitches and stud dogs
Condition 17: Material change to / at the Licensed premises

Condition 18:

Health Annual Check



28 abed

Condition 19: Plan for a Licensed premises and displaying Licence
Schedule 1
Part 1 — Licence Conditions

Condition 1 — Enhancement and Enrichment

1. The licence holder must implement an enhancement and enrichment programme that has been approved by the local authority.

Condition 2 — Socialisation

2. The licence holder must implement a socialisation programme that has been approved by the local authority.

Condition 3 — Health

3. The licence holder must take all reasonable steps to protect dogs from pain, suffering, injury and disease.

Condition 4 — Mating

4. The licence holder must ensure a breeding bitch —
(a) is not mated until she is 12 months old;
(b) does not give birth to more than 1 litter of puppies in a 12 month period; and
(c) does not give birth to more than 6 litters of puppies in total.

Condition 5 — Change of ownership of a puppy

5. The licence holder must retain ownership and possession of a puppy on the premises occupied by the licence holder until it is
at least 56 days old.



€g abed

Condition 6 — Breeding bitch record requirements

6.(1) The licence holder must maintain a written record in relation to each breeding bitch kept setting out her:

(a) name;

(b) date of birth;

(c) breed;

(d) physical description including colour and identifying features;
(e) health status;

(f) mating details including;

(i) in relation to the sire, the information required in sub-paragraph 1(a) to (e);
(i) in relation to each puppy born —

(aa) date of birth;
(bb) when ownership is transferred, the new owners name and address.

6.(2) When ownership of a breeding bitch is transferred the name, address and telephone number of the new owner must be

6.(3)

7.(1)

recorded by the licence holder on the record referred to in sub-paragraph (1) and a copy of the record must be provided to
the new owner and a copy retained by the licence holder.

The record referred to in sub-paragraph (1) must be available for inspection and retained by the licence holder for the
lifetime of the breeding bitch.

Condition 7 — Puppy record requirements

The licence holder must maintain a written record confirming the following details in relation to each puppy which is on the
premises occupied by the licence holder:

(a) sex;

(b) date of birth;

(c) breed;

(d) physical description including colour and identifying features;

(e) health status;



g abed

(f) in relation to the dam, the information required by condition 6.(1) (a) to (e); and
(g) in relation to the sire, the information required by condition 6.(1) (a) to (e).

7.(2) When ownership of a puppy is transferred, the name address and telephone number of the new owner must be recorded by
the licence holder on the record referred to in sub-paragraph (1) and a copy of the record must be provided to the new owner
and a copy retained by the licence holder.

7.(3) The record referred to in sub-paragraph (1) must be available for inspection by the local authority at any time and retained by
the licence holder for 3 years from the date of birth of the puppy.

Regulation 8 (2) (b)

Condition 8 - Grant or renewal of licences - Maximum amount of dogs kept

8. A condition specifying the maximum number of adult dogs and puppies to be kept under the terms of the licence.

Regulation 8 (2) (c)

Condition 9 - Grant or renewal of licences - Staff to dog ratio

9. A condition specifying a staff to adult dog ration which must ensure as a minimum staff requirement —
(i) 1 x full-time attendant per 20 adult dogs kept; or
(i) 1 x part-time attendant per 10 adult dogs kept.



Gg abed

Regulation 8 (3) - Welsh Local Authority Licensing Conditions

Condition 10 —

Size of Quarters

10. The following are the minimum size requirements for :

Small Size Dogs

No. dogs | Free access to exercise | Limited access to exercise
1 2.5sgm 45sgm
2 2.5sgqm 4.5sqm
3 45sqm 6.5sgm
4 6.0sgm 8.5sgqm
Medium Size Dogs
No. dogs | Free access to exercise | Limited access to exercise
1 25sgm 45sgm
2 4.5sqgm 6.5sgm
3 6.0sgm 8.5sgm
Large Size Dogs
No. dogs | Free access to exercise | Limited access to exercise
1 45sgm 6.5sgm
2 6.0sgm 8.5sgqm
Guidance;

Size of dogs:

Small — Pugs, Bichon Frise, Terriers
Medium — Spaniels, Bearded Collie, Beagle
Large — Labrador, Boxer




0Q abed

Free access to exercise means the dogs have unrestricted daily access to exercise area.

Limited access to exercise means the dogs have restricted access to an exercise area.

The kennel should be sufficiently large to allow each dog to be able to walk, turn around and wag its tail without touching the
sides of the kennel, to play, to stand on its hind limbs and to lie down without touching another individual.

When the animal/s is in the kennel there should be sufficient space for the door to open fully.

Bitches with litters should be provided with double this space allowance.

Condition 11 — Whelping Facilities

11.(a) All bitches must be provided with a designated area or kennel prior to whelping, with a suitable whelping box/bed.

11.(b) Heating facilities must be adequate, secure and safe and capable of providing the range of temperatures, suitable for both

pups and bitch.

11.(c) An area must be provided where a bitch can rest away from her pups.

Guidance;

Bitches should generally be housed with other dogs in a pair or group, but should be individually housed for a few days prior
to whelping. However, they should continue to have sight, sound and smell of other familiar bitches and daily contact with
humans.

The whelping area/kennel should cater for the maximum number of puppies taking account of breed size and litter size. To
avoid crushing puppies, crush bars can be useful.

From approximately 3 days after parturition, bitches should be given short periods of exercise away from their litter.

Bitches due to whelp should be inspected regularly.

When in labour, bitches should be closely monitored and if any signs of difficulty are shown, a vet should be contacted as a
matter of urgency. Contact details for veterinary support should be readily available.

Condition 12 — Supervision

12.(a) Where the Licensee is absent for some time then supervision of the premises must be by a suitable and competent person



18 abed

of least 16 years of age.
12.(b) Those that supervise must have a thorough and detailed knowledge of the licensing conditions and comply with them at all
times.

12.(c) The Licensee must live in close proximity to the Licensed premises, so as to be able to attend promptly at all times.

12.(d) Dogs must be visited at regular intervals, as necessary to ensure their health, safety and welfare and prevent any unnecessary
suffering.

12.(e) Regular intervals must be a minimum of 3 times per day.

Guidance;
e Anyone supervising the dogs, need to have sufficient knowledge and experience to be able to handle the dogs correctly and
safely. They must also be able to recognise if a dog’s behaviour suggests there is a problem and act appropriately.
e All breeders and staff should have access to and be familiar with the Code of Practice for the Welfare of Dogs and all other
relevant legislation.
e They should have a sound working knowledge of dog breeding and be aware of good practice and trait(s) of the breed(s) in
their establishment.

Condition 13 — Health Status of dogs

13.(a) There must be a daily physical inspection of every animal to check for any signs of iliness, injury or distress.
13.(b) Stud dogs and breeding bitches must be physically and behaviourally sound.

13.(c) Any breeding stock which appears to the licensing inspector to exhibit unsound hereditary or behavioural characteristics may
be required to be verified as sound by the Licensee’s veterinary surgeon. Advice from a veterinary surgeon must be sought
without delay where a dog shows signs of disease, injury, illness or behavioural disorder and recorded in the dog’s logbook
and be available to potential purchasers.

Guidance;
e Any breeding stock that show signs of fear or anxiety do not normally make a good parents.




QQ abed

e Puppies should be the product of healthy, sociable and environmentally competent parents.
Licence Condition 14 - Dog ldentification

14.(a) Breeding bitches and stud dogs must be micro chipped by a suitably competent person and registered on a recognised
national database.

14.(b) The Licensee must complete a Breeding Bitch Record and a Puppy Log Book in the format detailed in the Welsh Minister’s
Guidance or in another format that replicates this information.

14.(c) After the dogs have left the Licensed premises, records must be kept for a minimum of 24 months and must be available on
demand to authorised officers.

Guidance;
e Please refer to the Welsh Ministers Guidance Schedule 1 for an example of a Breeding Bitch Record.
e Please refer to the Welsh Ministers Guidance Schedule 2 for an example of a Puppy Log Book.

Licence Condition 15 - Responsible Breeding

15.(a) Any breeding stock which proves to exhibit unsound hereditary or behavioural characteristics must not be bred from.

15.(b) When intentionally breeding crossbreds, breeders must have due regard to the breeds’ compatibility for ease of whelping
and to produce healthy puppies.

Guidance;
e Licensees should be familiar with the health screening tests available to their chosen breeds, in consultation with their own
Veterinary Surgeon.
e Cross breeds are defined as offspring of any two or more recognised breeds of dogs.
e Breeding closely related animals should be carefully considered.
e Close breeding examples include mating between brother and sister, father and daughter, mother and son, grandparent and
grandchild or half brother or sisters.




68 abed

Licence Condition 16 - Strategy for the retirement of breeding bitches and stud dogs.

16.(a) All retired breeding bitches and stud dogs being kept within the Licensed premises will still be included on the licence.
16.(b) Breeders must have a plan for dealing with retired dogs.

Guidance;

Breeders should plan for the retirement of their breeding dogs. Should retirement involve re-homing to a domestic environment
dogs must be exposed, during their working lives, to a programme of stimulation designed to maintain their socialisation with
humans and their competency with the domestic environment.

Licence Condition 17 - Material change to / at the Licensed premises

17. The Licensee must inform the licensing authority before making any material change to / at the Licensed premises.
Guidance;

A “material change” may include such things as building new kennels; significantly increasing the number of dogs, reduction in staff
at the kennels etc

Licence Condition 18 - Health Annual Check

18.(a) The licensing authority requires the Licensee to have all stud dogs and breeding bitches checked by a veterinary
surgeon each year. The veterinary surgeon will compile a written Health and Welfare Report which details the
dogs he inspected.

18.(b) The Report will detail the health and welfare of the dogs and will state whether the dogs are fit to be used in the
breeding establishment. This Report will be supplied to the Licence authority at the time of the Licence application.

18.(c) The licensing authority will not accept an assessment of the dogs made by a veterinary surgeon for the Health and



06 @bed

Welfare Report if the assessment has taken place more than 3 months prior to the date of the commencement of the
Licence.

18.(d) Where the veterinary surgeon has made recommendations in the report these will be considered as being mandatory
requirements where they may affect the dogs health, welfare or safety.

Licence Condition 19 - Plan for a Licensed premises and displaying Licence

19.(a) The Licensee must submit a suitable plan showing the outline of the buildings, kennel layout, exercise yard and
any other construction relevant to the Licensed premises.

19.(b) The current Licence must be displayed on the premises.

Guidance;

This outlined plan may be hand drawn but must be in a rough scale to other buildings. All outlines must be identified on the plan.

The plan must have the name of the premises written on it, the date and the name of the person who has drawn it.

10



Agenda ltem 9

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 17" November 2015
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 5)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This regular monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position
for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The position is
based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 5, and projects forward to
year-end.

The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 5 is as follows:
Council Fund

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.595m higher than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £3.941m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.041m higher than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.196m

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 31st March 2016.

2 Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account.

Page 91



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION FOR
MONTH 5 - 2015/16
1.01 | Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast
The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.
In-Year
TOTAL EXPENDITURE Original Revised | Projected | Over/
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn | (Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.696 59.670 59.645 | (0.025)
Community & Enterprise 12.598 12.706 12.523 | (0.183)
Streetscene &
Transportation 27.782 27.770 28.878 | 1.108
Planning & Environment 4.887 5.331 5.506 | 0.175
Education & Youth 13.760 13.563 13.546 | (0.017)
Schools 82.670 83.157 83.157 | 0.000
People & Resources 4.595 4.644 4.674 | 0.030
Governance 8.689 8.728 8.897 | 0.169
Organisational Change 9.569 9.635 9.466 | (0.169)
Chief Executive 3.296 3.195 3.010 | (0.185)
Central & Corporate
Finance 23.915 23.058 22.750 | (0.308)
Total 251.457 251.457 252.052 | 0.595
1.02 | The reasons for the projected variances occurring to date are summarised
within appendix 2 with movements between periods summarised in appendix
1.
1.03 | Significant budget movements between original and revised budget
There were no significant budget changes between portfolios in month 5.
1.04 | Streetscene and Transportation
The overall overspend within Streetscene & Transportation has increased
from a projected £0.894m at Month 4 to £1.108m. The projected overspend
within the service is due in part to the delay in the implementation of a
number of efficiencies as reported to the Programme Board. In addition
fluctuations in recycle sales due to a volatile market has led to an increased
pressure on income projections which have resulted in a shortfall of
£0.347m. Full details of movements are explained in Appendix 1.
Programme of Efficiencies
1.05

The 2015/16 budget contains £12.874m of specific efficiencies which are

Page 92




being tracked through the relevant programme board.

1.06

Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation to
the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.07

This shows that it is currently projected that £10.803m (84%) will be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £2.071m. The position will continue
to be monitored and reported throughout the monthly monitoring process.

1.08

Inflation

Included within the 2015/16 budget are provisions for pay (£1.304m),
targeted price inflation (£0.421m), non-standard inflation (£0.102m) and
income (£0.254m).

1.09

For 2015/16 the amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) include an
allocation for food (£0.064m) and an allocation for Non Domestic Rates
(£0.038m).

1.10

There is also an amount of £0.240m remaining from 2014/15 which is
currently also being held centrally. Areas subject to NSI increases will be
monitored throughout the year and allocations made to portfolio areas only
where a critical funding need is evidenced.

Reserves and Balances

1.11

Unearmarked Reserves

The 2014/15 outturn reported to Cabinet on 14" July 2015 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2015 (above the base level of £5.769m)
of £4.746m.

1.12

Taking into account the current overspend at Month 5 the balance on the
contingency reserve at 315t March 2016 is projected to be £3.941m.

1.13

This includes the expenditure of £0.210m approved at Month 3 for the costs
of the Speed Limit Review.

1.14

The Council will shortly be commencing with a number of Community
Engagement events to gain feedback on its Medium Term Financial Strategy.
There is a requirement for £0.050m of one-off funding for animation, video
and presentational costs and it is recommended that this is funded from the
Contingency reserve.

1.15

Earmarked Reserves

The Council has developed a reserves protocol which was considered by
Audit Committee and approved by County Council on 24t September 2015.
This sets out the principles around how the council will determine, manage
and review the level of its reserves and includes reference to regular
reporting of the latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 93




1.16

A summary of earmarked reserves was included as at Month 4. Quarter 2
information will be reported as part of the Revenue Monitoring Report
2014/15 (Month 6).

Housing Revenue Account

1.17 | On 17 February 2015 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2015/16 of £30.776m.

1.18 | The budget provided for a closing balance of £1.396m which at 4.5% of total
expenditure, satisfies the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of
3%.

1.19 | The 2014/15 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 14" July 2015 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2014/15 of £1.510m.

1.20 | The Month 5 monitoring report for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure
to be £0.041m higher than budget and a projected closing balance as at 31
March 2016 of £1.196m.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the financial
resources of the Council for the current financial year and details the
variations occurring to date.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None Required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Recycling
The recycling market (paper in particular) is going through a volatile period
with fluctuating re-cycle sale values. This will impact on 2015/16 recycling
income levels for the Council. The current impact is reflected in the Month
5 projections and will continue to be monitored throughout the year.
Status: unstable/amber risk.

4.02 | Car Parking

Due to car parking charges being introduced in some Flintshire towns later
than anticipated during 2015/16, it is likely that there will be an increased
shortfall in achieving the increased car park income targets. Therefore,
work is currently ongoing to take account of the revised implementation
dates and the subsequent affect this will have on revised income
projections, the updated outturn position is reflected in the Month 5
projections. Status: unstable/amber risk.

Page 94




4.03

Out of County Placements

The risk is the volatility in demand and the impacts on service costs which
cannot be predicted with any certainty. Therefore there is always a risk of
significant variances occurring although this area will continue to be
closely monitored. Status: unstable/amber risk.

4.04

Former Euticals Site

Monthly costs for ongoing security and maintenance of the site are in the
region of £0.030m and will accumulate throughout the financial year until
site disposal. Status: unstable/amber risk.

4.05

In Year Reductions in Specific Government Grants

This is a generic risk associated with the risk of some Government grants
reducing in year. Whilst these are being managed and mitigated where
known, they can add to cumulative cost pressures. Status: unstable/amber
risk.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 4 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget Variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movement on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

None required

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson

Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service evels in
financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

7.02

Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’s revenue expenditure is
charged.

7.03

Financial Year: the period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

Page 95



mailto:sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.04

Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on
housing services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate
from the Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from
rents and government subsidy.

7.05

Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the
financial year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

7.06

Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

7.07

Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

7.08

Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure
incurred is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income
the actual income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

7.09

Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

7.10

Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 96




COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

erne . FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
F Sir y Filint
f"!\ts!)lm Budget Monitoring (Month 5

Summary of Movement from Month 4

Month 4

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Month 5

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation
Social Services

Services For Adults
e Reablement Services (Intake and Reablement) - Community Care Officer reallocated to CHC
Independence -(£0.030m), Other Minor variances amount to -(£0.005m).

* Resources & Regulated Services (Intake and Reablement) - Movement due to vacancies being
filled.

» Residential and Domiciliary Services (Mental Health) - Movement due to increase in Joint funding
income of -(£0.055m) from BCUHB.

o Disability Services (Disability Services) - Reduction in forecast of transition clients care package
costs for 15/16.

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adulits.
Subtotal: Services for Adults

Development & Resources
e Finance (Deputyship team) - Reduction in customer care income.
o Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.

Subtotal: Development & Resources

Children’s Services

o Professional Support - Increase in court costs within resources In addition increases in Children &
Young Adults Support Team (CYAST) support costs.
+ Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.

Subtotal: Children’s Services

Total: Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Revenues & Benefits
e Additional surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund.

e Council Tax Reduction Scheme expenditure
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m

Subtotal: Revenues & Benefits
Minor changes of less than £0.025m.

e Customer & Housing Services
e Customer Services

Subtotal: Customer Services

Total: Community & Enterprise

Page 97

£m £m
0.738
(0.313)
0.425
0.903
(0.308)
0.595
0.170
(0.035)
0.034
(0.055)
(0.072)
(0.024)
(0.152)
0.019
0.069
0.088
0.059
0.053
0.112
0.048
(0.019)
0.014
0.001
(0.004)
0.004
(0.001)
0.003
(0.001)

Appendix 1



Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Ancillary Services & Performance

Further under achieving in the recycling market due to a volatile period with fluctuating re-cycle
sale values

Parking & Enforcement - delays in the implementation of car parking charges across the County
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m
Subtotal: Ancillary Services & Performance

Total: Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment Portfolio

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Business

Community

Development

Access

Shared Service

Strategy

Administration

Total: Planning & Environment

Education & Youth

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

Primary & Early Years Education - Primary Schools
Inclusion Services - Out of County

Regional Services

School Planning

Adult & Community Education

Youth Justice Service

Youth & Community Service

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Education & Youth

People & Resources

HR & OD

Occupational Health - workforce costs have decreased by -(£0.012m) due to vacancies,
consultancy costs have reduced by -(£0.008m) due to less doctor consultant days and
counselling sessions required.

Minor changes of less than £0.025m.

Subtotal: HR & OD
Corporate Finance
Minor changes of less than £0.025m.

Subtotal: Corporate Finance

Total: People & Resources

Page 98

0.111

0.090
0.013

0.214

0.214

0.005
0.001
0.004

(0.001)

(0.005)
0.001
0.003

0.008

0.004
(0.009)
(0.004)
(0.005)
0.005
0.003
(0.013)

{0.019)

{0.019)

(0.020)
(0.006)

(0.026)

0.021

0.021

{0.005)

Appendix 1



Governance

Legal Services
Increase in workforce costs due to matemity cover and an increase in the duration of an agency
contract.

Subtotal: Legal Services

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
o Democratic Services
e Business Support
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Governance

Organisational Change

Property Design & Consultancy

Projected costs relating to the demolition of Connah's Quay office has been met through funding
e support from the Vibrant and Viable Places initiative resulting in -(£0.054m) savings within this
service area. This approach will support wider strategic regeneration initiatives.

Subtotal: Property Design & Consultancy

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
o Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events
« County Archives
o Leisure Services
e Valuations & Estates
* Facilities
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Organisational Change

Chief Executive

® There is a potential underspend of -(£0.044m) on the budget required for increments relating to
performance related pay. An underspend of -(£0.008m) is due to minor variances.

Total: Chief Executive
Central & Corporate Finance

* Minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Total: Central & Corporate Finance

Total Changes

Page 99

0.030
0.030
0.004
(0.003)
0.001
0.031
(0.054)
{0.054)
(0.008)
0.003
0.001
0.014
(0.017)
{0.005)
{0.059)
(0.052)
(0.052)
0.005
0.005
0.170

Appendix 1



Page 100



‘sainssald

SSaJppe 0} 92)AIBS U| 81aymas|a spuadsiapun
asn 0) syuawysnipe Juswubieal 16png puswwosay

‘saunssald

SS2IppE 0} S0IAIBS U) BISYMIS|S spuadsiapun

*S32IAIS a1ed AB( UIUIM W 20 03 12U B 0} Junowe

SSOUBLIBA JOUIW 13y} "Bale Jayjoue woly }abpng jo juswubijesas

10 Aem Aq passaippe si ainssaud Sy} Jey) papuajul st )| ‘sjgeaalyseun
3q 0] paIsapIsuod mou si yoeosdde Bupsa) sueaw e o) Bunejal

126pnq ayy ul panoidde sem wGQL 03 JOJ SInSealu ADUSIDIYS UB 3Jaym
suoneidepy Joully S| puadsiano Jo eale Juedyubis Jo eale saypny
et o)

*S3IOUBJBA JBNJOM

[e100g 0} anp Buiyels o} sajefal yoiym (WEe0'03) Jo puadsispun
pajoafoud [B)0) B S| 218 "SWea) salj|es0] eale ay) uiyim poddns
[euoissajoud ayy s| puadsiapun jo ease Juedylubis Jo eale Jayung
Hoddng [euoissajold

‘Buisinu aaly 1o} (WOgn'03) Buipniour 196png aaoge awooul

ul sasealou) Jayuny snid ‘awodul pajejal Auadoud Jo |9As| ay) ul
aseaJloul ue 0} anp (W gy 03) Jo puadsiapun ue ‘siapiacid swioy a1eo
0} sjuswAed uo (wWegz 03F) Jo puadsiapun ue ‘sapnjou) Yaiym ‘ases
|enuapisal uo (Wyg/ 03) Jo puadsiapun pajosiford e Aq 189S0 uey)
aJow Buiaq si a1ed Aeyoiwog uo puadsiano pajoaloid juesubis ayl
ale) |enuapisay

-abexyoed xajdwod auo jJo uonessad ay) Aq pasuanjjul Ajued uaaq

Sey yaiym ‘w/ 8’03 Jo uonisod LINRNO G|/ LOZ Y} WOy pasnpal
Apueoyiubis sey yoiym Wwosy 03 st puadsiano pajoslold jo [9As|
jaLno ay| enuawap yum sidoad jo sisquunu Buiseasou) pue pasu
10 Auxajduwios paseasoul ‘ajyoid oneioowap Buibueys ay Juawsaiqeas
ysed |nyssaoons Buimojjo} aouss ay) 0) Bujuanias syusio Aq pasuanjjul
Buiaq j11s st yoiym ‘aten Aeyjioiwoq sl ainssaud jo ease ulew

ay] eale s|y} ul saoueueA Bupesuadwod Juesylubis swos ale asay |

(saneao)

asn 0} sjuawisnipe juswubijess 1o6png puawwioosy ase) Aeqoiwoq|(L6z0)  |(s62'0)  [SS6°EL 0SZ'vl swea Ajeso
SIIIAIBG [e120S
(wz) (wz) (w3) (w3z)
¥ yuop wnyno 18bpng
paanbey uopoy asueye/ Jofep Jo asnesn soueueA aJuepeA pejosfold posiAey ELlTNETS

Z Xipuaddy

AHVNINNS - S HENOW

Page 101



"S]UBI|D UOINISUE) [BUOHIPPE UM

(seamas Ayngesia)
ao1nIes Agesiq pue

"mMaIAal Japun daay|  juaw)WWOod pajewnsa ‘gL/1L0z 40} sabeyoed aled Jualino S)os8)ay|G61 0 G610 991’2 1222 SYNPY 9iqeIaunNA
‘sJased Aojdwa oym sissn
ao1n19s 10} syuswAed asueinsu Ayjiger) sakojdwa puny o} suonebiiqo
104 pue s19sn 921nuss 0} sjuawiAed ay) abeuew o) papaau Aloeded
‘saInssatd| ‘uuIpe [euonippe ay} o} uoleldl ul S juawae Buluiewsads ay| Aouaidiye (seoinias Alpigesiq)
SSaJppe 0} 90IAIAS Ul a1aUmas|e spuadsiapun| 4o auo e se ajelodio) pue [enuad o) (471) puny Buiar juapuadapu) $301n9G paje|nbay
asn 0) syusw)snipe wawubijeal 196png puawwoday| ay) 0} uoneas Ul Jabpng Jo Jajsuel) sy} Bunosyjal mou si 20IA18S SIU L [€61°0 1910 or6'slL €11°Gl Y S90IN0S3Y
‘Woe0'03
Buiurewas ay) dn Bupjew sasueLEA JOUIW JOYIO UM WZL | 03
10 puadsiano pajoafoid ejo) ay) Jo WZgo 03 404 SluNodde Siy | (s=011u38 Anjigesiq)
‘sjuawAed 10a.1p Jo 10adsal ul sjpIapuad Aq papinoid sjuawabuene saoineg Ajigesiq
‘mMalnal Japun dasy Hoddns ay} Jo 1500 ay} 0} anp Ajulew s| puadsiaao pajosfoid syl (z1L1°0 ZLL0 6040 1650 pue uolisues |
*S8IDUBOBA (uawajgeay
0} anp Buiyels o) sajejas yaiym (weggo 03) Jo puadsiapun pajosioid pue ayeju))
|10} B S| 218y "swesd) sa0ineg pajeinbay B saoinossy eale sa0inag paje|nboy
‘malnal sapun daay| 3yl uiyum a1eD WOoH By} si puadsiapun jo eale Juedaubis jo eaiy|(GL 1 Q) (580°0) op8's 1€6°S Y S90IN0SaY
‘paAaiyoe aq jouued yoiym siesodoid
Aouaioya Jo 10adsai ul sjuawysnipe yuawubijeal 196pnq jo ped se
‘M3l Japun deay| pasn aq o) papuaiui aJe yoiym - sisod Jueoen o} anp sbuiaes bulers|(v0ol - 0) (61170 80€0 12V 0 NIOAA [e100S ([eydsoH
‘aouapuadapul (Juswajgeay
a1e) yyesH Buinuguo) Bunowoud a21A19S Jayjoue 0) JadIYo pue ayeju|)
‘MalAal Japun daayy ue JO Uoied0||2al 3y} 0} anp Ajuiew si puads Jspun pajoaloid ay) [(610°0) {(yso'0) 16E°0 LSt°0 S92IAIDG JuBWB|qeay
‘WEZO'0F 18U 0} JUNOWE S3OUBLIBA JOUIW JaY)0 Aq 19S)0 (Juawajqeay pue
‘MaiAR) Jopun deey|  (wZ01°03) JO Swooul [eUOHIpPE O} anp S| puads Japun pajosfoid ayL|(¥80°0)  |(#¥80°0)  [SEVO 6150 elu|) 10BIUOD JSid
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aJinbay uol ¥ yjuop wnuno jabpng
palinbay uonoy aosueuep Jofep Jo asned) soueLEA asuepep pejoefoid BosINDY] ERITVETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYYNNNS - S HINOW

Page 102



‘sainssaid
SSaJppe 0} 821AaS Ul B1aymas|e spuadsiapun

wawdo|sAa  a2Iopopn  Ble)

‘pasnbai

|12Aa] ay} o} dn doy 0} $301MBS [BI120S UIYIM alaymas|d wody 196png ayy
ubiieas 0} alojeay) AUBSSa%aU aqg [IIM ) (dAMDS) uels swwelboid
[e100S 8y} 10} suopuod jueib
ay) 193w 0} paiinbal |9A3] ay} mojaq usjie; sey 1a6png sy} Jo WSS
Buipuny yojew ay)} dduanbasuod e sy "suoleulwidep HASHAT
pue sawoono snejs ajbulg jo joedw) paulquiod ay) Jo asuanbasuod

asn o) sjusunsnipe yuawubieal 1a6png puswwoday|e se paonpal Ajeinjeu sey a21A18s SIUY) Joj 1ebpng sseq ayl|ySL0 991°0 €120 100 Buuies)
‘sainssatd awoou)
SS3IpPE 0} 9IIAIDS U] Iaymas|d spuadsiapun yoam Jad 093 o} yoam Jad 663 woly des abieyd wnwixew Aolj0d Buibiey)
asn 0} sjuawysnipe Juswubijeal }126png puswwooay[ayl Jo [aA8] By} Ul JUBWUIBA0S) US|I9M AQ aseasoul ue jo joedw||{gsz 0) (9zz°0) (668°L) (€29°1) - S3JIAIBG ssauIsng
(o1eb2166€)
S3JUBLIEA S)|NPY
‘JuaLINJ3aJ 8q 0} Pajaadxa Jou JNQ MIIASI O} BNUNUOD ‘S99UBLEA JOoUIW SNOUBA [(801°0) (rSL0) 692 ceve 10} S2IAIBS JBUI0
(so11u8g
‘SHN02 Jo uosud wouy 8210u asnsiy aoue)sgng
HOUYS Je spuewsap pue ssaquinu jualo uy sabueys B U)|eaH (elusiy)
0} anp A)jie|oA jerualod - maiaal Japun daay| '91/610z J0} sabeyoed ased Juaund s9)ay|(681°0) (68L°0) 8z1L0 1180 1obpng d1sualo4
(CRITVELS
‘saunssaid asns|py aouesqng
SSaIppe 0} 82IAIS U) d1ayMas|a spuadsiapun ‘yeyjs Aouabe jo asn Q YljeaH [ewsiy)
asn 0} sjuawysnipe uawubijeas 196pnqg puswwoday| Buipnoul ‘s}so0o saakojdwa uo sainssaid 0} anp Ajulew st puadsiaag (2200 2.00 69/°0 €690 poddng [euoissajoid
[ClILVETS
asnsi 2oue)sqng
B e [eIUSN)
'§)s00 abeyoed mau [euomppe 20198 Aseljioiwoq
"M3IASI 1apun daay apis Buoje sabexoed Aie)|1D1WwoQ pue |BRUSPISSY Ul SBSEaIdU| (0L 0 SLLO 8260 €180 pue |enuapisay
(seoinuag
‘yeys Asuabe jo asn Buipnjoul Aygesiq) voddng
‘M3IARL Japun das)y 'S1S02 saaAojdwsa uo sainssaid o) anp Ajuiew si puadsiano siylL|2LL 0 0zZL0 vey0 $0E'0 aAjessIuIWLpY
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¥ Yluop wnuno 196png
paiinbay uonoy asueueA Jofepy Jo asne) soueEA asueueA pe1oefoid pesiney L TNETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVNNNS - S HLNOW

Page 103



(e200)  [(szo'0)  [sv9'es 0.9°'6S S90IAI9S (8190 (B0
(eyebaibbe)
Sa2UBLBA U3IPHIYD
"JuS1INJ3J 8q 0} pajoadxa JouU JNg MBIABI 0} SNUNUCD *S9oUBLEBA Jouiw SnoueA {0y L 0) (660°0) 182 69v°¢ 10§ S92UNIBS JBYIOD
SUETIELIT N
“MBINB) Japun daay 91/510¢ 40) sabesjoed a1ea Juaund s}03))94(00Z°0) (0020} gle’e 9lv'e Awnog Jono
‘Hoddng |BUOISS9j0Id SIS
S,UBIPIYD UIYIM 219ymas|a WL 0'03 jo spuadsiapun jau Bumasyo
aJe alay| 'siesn 0SS JuswAed 102lp JO Siequinu  PasSEaIdUl
ue o} anp si yoym (SAID) sdwiag Anigesiq pajesBsiu] sualpiyd
ay) jsuiebe wggpQ03 jo ainssaid JByUN) B S| AUSY| "SSIDUBIEA
0} onp slebpnq Aed jsuiebe spuadsiapun Bulpasyo BwWos yYum
sainssaid|'w/GQ 03 Wodsuel| pue wgzl 03 jo siapiaoid [ewidixa 0} sjuswAed
SSaJppe 0} 32IAI3S U) a1aymas|e spuadsiapun|uyum sainssaid 0} anp s siyl (1SVAD) wesy uwoddng s)npy
asn 0} sjuswisnipe yuawubieal Jabpng puawwioday|BunoA pue suaipiyd syl o} saejal (wogl-03) ainssaid siy) Jo 1SOW|(8SL0 1120 v12'S 1661 poddng |euoissajoid
'sJased ay}
*saI1ouaIoIYe ajqissod|io) aosuemojje Bulobuo ue Joeine Algeueaul ysiym siaplo diysuelpiensy
pue Bujuue|d aininy wioul (M pue pasapisuod|je1dads pue aduspIsay JOj SISPIO WNOD Jo ssqunu  Buiseasoul
Buiaqg s! yoiym JO SW0O2IN0 3y} UayeUapun |ay} 0} anp OS|e SI SIY} JO UBd "9oiAIaS BY) uiyum sjuswadeld a1ed 1s)soy (sao1u88 s,ua1piu))
Uaaq Sy Wea | JUaWade|d Ajie ay) JO M3IARI V|40 Jaquinu By} Ul 3Seadul Ue JO JNSal B S| puddsiono wooz 03 aYl|96L°0 9020 ceve leee swaoe|d Ajwe
(e1e6216068)
S9JUBLIBA SB2IN0SaY
"JUaUINJ31 8q 0} Pajoadxa J0U JNq MIIASI 0} BNUNUOYD "S2DUBLIBA JOUIW SNOUBA|9G0°0 9010 yese 8L'Z g wawdopasq 18Y10
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¥ Yjuow wnpno 186png
pasinbay uoyoy asueue Jofey jo asned soueen dduBUBA perefoid pesiey ELITNETS

Z xipueddy

ALYVWIAINS - S HINOW

Page 104



asjdiajug

(zsL'0)  |(esro) |ezszi 90.°Z1L » Ayunwwio oL
(g 1.0°03) Jo sedUBLEA Joulw JBYO (WEY0'03F)
"MBIABS pUB JOJUOW O) BNUIUOD|JO  uoISIA0Id  BDIAIBS  SJoaUUoD)  alysiull4 3yl uo puadsiapun|(£90°0) (90°0) 9v9°'0 0LL0 S32IAI9G JOWO)SND
"WOZ0'03 JO SSOUBLIEA JOUIW JBYID "WEBL 03
jo |lejuoys pajebpng Apisgng Jeuag BuisnoH ‘(Ww9zz'03) awayos
“1eak ay} inoybnouyyjuononpay xe| |1DUNoY ay) Joj uoisinoid pajebpng ay) uo puadsiapun
abueyo o) Ajoy))| ase suonoafoid pue a|ejoa|pajoslold -palewnisa Aemu ueyy Jaybly (weylL03) le spuels
Aybiy sie sease ssay) se Aj9s09 Joyuow 0} anupuo|Apuaund pund uonos)io) Xel jIpunod ayy uo snidins pajedionuy|(zcli o) (951°0) 66701 G690l Sjjauag @ sanuanay
*3)el SWES 3y} Je pasealdu;
Jjou aaey sabieys asaum ‘Jeak yoes uonejul yum aul u Buiseasou
"MalIAB) pue Jojluow o} anunuo) [s1abie) swooul 0} anp slExYJEW Ul WQQGQ0F JO [lerdoys parewns3 (0900 0900 6250 69%°0 uonessusbay
‘w1003
10 sasuepeA Joulw JBYIO (WeH0'03) Jo puadsiapun [Buolippe Sanual)
"MBIABI pUB JojluowW 0} anupuod{Ayunwwo) ‘wiLe0'03 Aq pajedionue uey) Jamo| awodul a1ed9|9] |620°0 6200 vZ1L0 S60°0 aidoad Bunoddng
‘W 10°03F JO SaouUBLIBA JOUIW JBYIO "W LEQ 0F JO uawainooid
ddVvHS Jo 10adsss ul aunppuadx3y (Wpe0'03) UOHBPOWILLIOIDY EVE TS
"M3IA1 PUB JOJUOW O} anuNuUo) [ssefswioH Jo joadsal Ul paypuapl puadsiepun JesA-ul feuonippy|(950°0) (250°0) szl0 111°0 BuisnoH g sawoisny
~asndisjug]
» Hunwuwon
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¥ Yluopy wnyno 18bpng
b
pasinbay uonoy asuepueA Jofep jo asne) eourpe aoueLeA pejosfoid pesiAsy ELITVETS

Z xipueddy

AIYWANS - S HLNOW

Page 105



saduelep

1a¥oel) 18410 - @2uBWIOHAd
Aouaolyg pieog swweibold ybnoyy papoday ‘saouBURA JOUIN|SL00 €100 1640 810 9 s20)1ABG AsejjIouy
AjBuipsoose suonoasloid Aunon ay) ssosoe sabieys Hupped Jed jo uonejuawsdui JuswazJ0uy
puswie pue Aj3s0j0 swoou] Buiped Jep Jouopy auyy ul sAejop Bumojo} siesodoid Buluue|d ssauisng wolj ||eJuoys|0z0'0 0LL0 9020 960°0 2 Bupyied
‘WG L0 0F JO SadUBLIBA JOUIW JBYIQ "PISLUSAIL) jB Ssal|ioe)
Bunsodwod ayy Buisn Jabuo) ou ale Asy} se wggo 03 DDA Wwoly
1s0dwiog 10} 91-G10Z Ul 8NP 3WO0dU| ON "W | |"03 JO S|9AS] SWOodul
-AlBuipioooe suonoaloid puswe pue| Suionpas JBYUN) ‘G pouad 1Y ‘WYEZ 0F sanjea ajes a|oA2-a) Buneniony
91/510z Inoybnouy) Al@so)o Jexiew Buyokoas soyuoy|  yum powad s(iejoa B o} anp 1axew BuijaAdas ay) ul Buinsiyoe Jspun
“JayoRl] "WGZ0 03 ulg alSem puooas Joj abiieyo Jo uononposul pue woso 03
Aousiolyyg pieog awweibold ybnoiy) psuoday SJaUIRJUOD B)SEM J0J 321AaS AUan)ap Jo uonejuaws|dwi pakesqg
‘wg/ |L°03F Jo Aouaroye payabpng ayj uo
llesuoys pajoaloid [B10) B Ul JNSal [{Im SANS JUl|4 pue AenD) S Yeuuo)) je
saw Bunesado mau jo uononpoiul pajdadxa uey) Jaie| auyy o) sabueyd
uayoel) | ‘uonippe u| *anuad BuyoAoas adoH Jo ainsopd pasodoud ay) o) uonelss
Aouaioyyg pieog awweibold ybnosyl papoday| ul uayepapUN UOHEYNSUOD pUB palapisuod Bulag ase suondo sayung
JWawabuele Juswasbeuew mau pue s|jam UOIOBIXS ‘wos L 03 uonoenxa seb Jo sjaaa| Bunenjony pue umopyesiq uona3||0D SISEM
Mmau ||ejsui/apelbidn o) JUsLWISaAUI 10 [elua)od wawdinba Bumojjoy sauibus seb woly sajes Aol paonpay (9690 2280 LvL 6859 B |esodsiq 31SeM
uoneyodsuen] |
P BUBIS}IANG
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¥ Yiuop wnyng 1ebpng
pasnnbay uopoy aosueueA Jofep jo asned soueueA sJuBUEA peyefoid posmay CLITNETS

Z xipuaddy

AYVWNINS - 6 HLINOW

Page 106



uonepodsues)
680 80L°L 8.8'8¢ 0LL'LZ ’? duads)aalg |ejoL
S30UBLIBA JBUJ0
"MaiAal 0} anunuo) "9oueneA oN|{z10°0) 0000 16L°0 L6L°0 - suomaN AemybiH
*(WZ10°03) Jo sadueleA JOUIN "WOQL 03 Jo AduaIolye ay) Ul [ejUoYS
JaYoRl] pajewnss Ue uj YNsal |Im Y21ym g10g Auenuer 1s| aq o} pajedionue
Aouaioyyg pieog swwelbold ybnosyy papoday Mmou s) spiepue)s Buisues|d paonpal ay) Jo uonejuswa|dw ayj
Jayoes] s}JomiaN
Aouaiowyyg pieog swwelbold ybnoiy) papoday ‘WSO 03 291uas Bumno sseib Jo uonesijiewalxa (|ny ay) ul Ae@Q|0sL 0 8c1L0 ¥0S°2 99¢°/ g ABajens sAemybiy
Sa0UBLIBA
Jayoel ] Jayjo - sansibo
Aoualoiy3 pieog awwesbold ybnoiyy pauoday ‘SaouBLBA JOUIN|[GZ0'0 GzZ0°0 [N A 05221 ® uoljepodsuel |
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¥ Yjuoi wnyno 18bpng
pasinbay uonoy asueueA Jofel jo asned souepep asueuep pojosfoig posmay ELITVETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVNINNS - S HLNOW

Page 107



juawuoliaug

191°0 SLL0 90S'S LEE'S g Bujuue|d jejop
SaOUBLEBA JBY)0 JO
"M3IABI 0} BNUIUOD "saoueueA JoUN|[(#00°0)  [(#00°0)  {BSO'E 290°€ ajebaibby ojlojuod
SadUBLIBA
180 jo ajebaibby
"MBIARI 0} anuURUOD ‘saouelep JOUIN|(900°0) {(0L0°0) €210 £EL°0 - Juswdojanag
¥ pouad 1e Juswanoidwi Jybiis e yum uswaoloug
palojyuow Aj9S0jo aq ||Im S|aA3| awoodu] 834 Buluueld 610z ‘1990190 {un Buiseasu) Jou sasy ddy Buuue|d woly |leyuoys| SLL°0 €ZL0 (010°0) (geL'0) 9 |onuo) Buluued
S3DUBLIBA JBYJO JO
"M3IAB] 0} anunuUO)) ‘sagueLeA Jouln| 000°0 +00°0 L ovbL a)ebalbby - ssauisng
wawubiieas Jabpng jenuajod ybnoiayy 'G1L0Z 21e| ul Buipua elaQg
Job.e) swoou| Juelc) 8anpais 0} sAem sjebisaaul weyxaip uim diysisuped o) anp 1961e) 8wWwodu| JUBIS) Uo ||efuoyS|ce00 $€0°0 0910 9z10 2 Y)|esH |ewiuy
SaoUBLIBA
J8y10 jo ajebalbby
“Malaal 0} anuluo) "S9JuBLEN JOUIN|(900°0) (500°0) €990 8990 - Aunwwo)
‘ajeudoldde se Juawpwiwod
3awoou Jsnipe pue papirnoid sadIASS JO |aA3] JOJUON ‘SaoueleA JOUIN|€20°0 €200 S100 (800°0) Buisual
‘gleudosdde se juawywwiod usplepp
awosul isnipe pue papiaoid SadIAIS JO [3A3] JOJUON "saoueUep JOUIN|[Z100 0L00 €500 €700 6o jonuo) 1sad
JUBUIUOJIAUT
» Bupuueld
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¥ Yiuow wnyno 18bpng
pasinbay uonoy asuepuep Jolep Jo asne) soueLEA asuBUBA pejosfoid pesirey ELITNETS

Z Xipusddy

AHYWAINS - S HINOW

Page 108



000'0 0000 IS1°E8 IS1'e8 sjooyog |ej0L
"M3{A3J 0} BNuRUOD "9oUBLIEA ON|000°0 000°0 906'€ 906'€ S30IAI9G UoISN|ou|
uoneonp3g Buinuyuo)
"M3lAR] 0} BNUKUOY "90UElIeA ON|000°0 0000 G09'6E G09°GE % 6171 ‘Aepucdag
uoneonpy siesA
"M3IAB) 0} BNURUOD "90UBLIEA ON|000°0 0000 9r9'el 9r9'ey Aue3 g Aewud
sjooysg
yinoA
200°0 {L1L0°0) s 'El £96°CL » uoneanpg |ejo
wea] uonewoju R
"M3JAR) 0} BnuUnUo) ‘saoueneA JoulN[(900°0)  [(800°0)  [98L°0 Z6L°0 juswabeueyy |ooyag
2duBUuLOuRd
"M3iAR) O} BNURUOD "90UBLEA ON|000°0 0000  |¥EZ0 ¥£2°0 g Buuoissiwwoy
"MBIAB) 0} BNUNUOD "sooueleA JOUIN|(700°0)  |(600°0)  |29¥'L Liv') S3IAI3S YINOA
“MBJAB) 0} BNUIUOD "90UBLIEA ON|000'0 0000 Z6¥°0 Z6¥0 sjooyog Ainuag 1sLg
{uoisinoid g Buiuue|d
‘MBIABI 0) BNUNUCD ‘S|eay JooydS 8814 JOoj puewWwSP Ul 9SBaJoUl 8y} 0} sajelal siy] (#2200 6100 1250 8050 JooYdS) $Sa20y
puewap Jo Ayqeloipardun pue spuswaoed
1509 ybiy Joj [enuajod ay} pue ad1AI8s au} JO aJNJeU 3|1JB[0A By}
*M3IA31 0) 3anUuUoD 0} anp Ajuoyine ay) o) ysH jo eale ue ale sjuawsoeld uno) jo INO|(0L0°0) (6£0°0) 1£9'8 9/9'8 $82)AU8S uoIsn|ou|
uoyjesnp3 Buinuuo)
"M3IAR) 0} BNURUOD ‘sadueleA JOUIN|600°0 5000 2L 2zl 7 61-p1 'Alepuodag
uoneonp3 siesA
‘M3IABI 0} BNUKUOD "S80UBHEA JOUIN|600°0 €100 1880 8980 Aueg g Aewud
yino, g uopednpy
(w3) (w3z) (w3) (w3)
uo| win abpn
paiinbay uogoy asueue Jofep Jo asnen Mo....«mth asueuRA kuowqﬂn.vm wam__ﬂmw CLITNETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVWIAINS - G HLINOW

Page 109



8€L°0 69170 168'8 8CL8 83UBUIANOE) |BIO )
"Juaunoal aq o) pajoadxa jJou S| puadsian) ‘saoueLEA JOUIN (0100 0L00 oglv [ YAR 121
yuswabeuepy
‘JuaLNo34 8q 0} pajoadxa Jou st puadsianQ ‘SaouUBLEBA JOUIN|0Z00 0200 610 v10 SpI029Yy
"Jua1inoal aq o} pajoadxa jJou S| puadsiapun ‘saoueueA JOUIN (S0 0) (600°0) 20 €610 yoddng ssauisng
‘Jua1indaJ aq 0) pajoadxa Jou S| puadsiang ‘saoueueA JOUIN|0Z0°0 0200 8510 8cL0 juswaInNdold
"JuaLnNoal aq o) pajoadxa jou s puadsiapun ‘saoueueA Jouln [(€00°0) (zo00) vy 0 9l¥°0 Jpny [Bulau|
*S9OUBLIEA JOUIW O} 8NP SI WZ00 03
Jeak|jo puadsiano uy 186png GLLO0Z AUl ulyim passbe sem yowym
1X3aU ||} Ul paAalyoe aq 0} pajoadxa s| Aoualolye ay) |wol L 03 Jo Aouaoiys ue Buiasiyoe ul Aejap e 0) anp S| puadsiano ayl (801 0 ZLL0 €202 1161 S90IAIBG Ofjeloowsq
"Jualndal aq 0} pajoadxa jou si puadsiapun ‘saoueLeA Joully [{(Z10°0) 8100 8290 0190 saoineg |eba
IJUBUIBA0Y
$92IN0SaYy
S£0°0 0€0°0 .19y o'y ® 9|doad g0l
‘610z 42qwadag Aq paje|dwod
aq 0] SI Uolym OO0l |enuapisay JO UolenjeA 10j poylew uodeaq
10} WGZO'03 Jo puadsiang ‘(wzg'03) Jo spuadsiapun 22I0pHOM
‘Aluo Jeak-u| ase spuadsiapun a2J0pUOAN JeaA 1xau|Aselodwa) Ag 1osyo Bulaq st sIyL WL 0F O IBJHOYS B YiIm panaiyoe
[In} Ul paAalyde aq 0) pajoadxa ale salousdlye 8y Ajleled Buleq se papodes Buleq si Aousioye 196pna 91/5102 V|(0v0°0) (6L0°0) 421504 044 aoueuld ajeso0dio)
‘(wgp0"03) Jo sadUBLBA JOUIW pUB (WQOS0'03)
"Ajuo Jeah-u| a2e spuadsiapun a21opI0AA 2B3A 1Xau (Jo spuadsiapun aolopiom Aq 1osyo Ajleined Bulaq si syl "s|geAsiyoe
IIn} U! paAaiyoe aq o} pajoadxa ale saloualoyye ay) fjou se papodas Buiag s wegoL'03 40 Aouaoie 196png 91/5102 V|SL0°0 6+0°0 262'c £ve’e aoBeyH
$92JN0S3Y ' 3jdoay
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¥ Yoy wnyno 196png
pasinbay uopoy aouepe/ Jofep Jo asnen eouepRA 2oueHeA peyoofoig posiay LIV ETS

Z Xipusddy

AIYWAINS - G HLNOW

Page 110



abueyn

(oL10)  l(e9L0) |99t'6 SE9'6 [euonesjuebiQ jejoL
‘WINRNO pajoadxa ul uononpai e ul Bugnsas s1 yoium aysem
$90NpaJ Wa)sAs juswabeueil ¥O0)S J1U0I3JS MaU 3y ] "suoisiacid uo
"mMalAal 0} anunuo)|  puads ay) ul ase8J08p B Jo YNsal e se S| puadsiepun (wgz'03) aUL|{(110'0) (820'0) 9vr9'L ¥29°L S30IAIG saljived
*MBIAR) 0} SNURUOYD "agueuen ON| 000°0 0000 000°0 0000 saoinag Buussulbuy
‘saAlenul uonelauabal o163jens Japim poddns jim yoeoudde
sIy] "eaJe 321/9s SIY) ulyum sbuiaes (wygo 03) Ul Buninsal aAneniul
$908B|d 9|qBIA pue JuelgiA ay) woyy poddns Buipuny ybnoiy) 19w usaq Aoueynsuo)
"MaIABJ 0} anunuo)| sey aoiyo Aenp s,yeuuo) jo uopiowap ay) o) Bunetas sised payoalold| 0000 ($50°0) pe9e 8892 % ubisaq Auadoidg
"Bale 32IAIIS SIY) UIYIM
"MalAR) 0} anuhuoy| sases|al yels Buimo)|o) paaaiyoe (Ww/60"03F) Jo salousIoya a2IopHoM[(LLE D) (£60°0) (v06°0) (£08°0) S3jejsq g uoheniep
"M3IAB) 0] aNUNUOD '80uBUEA ON|000°0 0000 8100 8L0°0 sjessy Ajunwwo)
‘w0003
10 saoueUeA Joulw JaYQ (wegn-03) Jo sbuiaes 1so0o saliddns
‘MBIARJ 0} NUIUOY '3 sasjwaid Aq Josy0 a1nssaid Swodu) YUl 39] apIseaq WOL0'03(¢10°0 ¥10°0 $86°E 0/6'E S90IAIS BINSIDT
“MalARl 0} anuyuod ‘saoueneA JOUIN|(L00'0) 2000 192°0 6520 S8AIyaly Aluno)
*M3IABI 0} aNUNUoD "agueueA ON|000°0 0000 ¥90°0 +90°0 99IAI3S swnasniy
SJuaAg
' 2JMNY 'sUy
"MBIASI Q) BNUNUC)H ‘SaouBlLEA JOUIN| 000°0 (900°0) £€92°L 692°1L '@ Saue.qI alignd
abuey) jeuonesuebio
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
uo win; abpn
pasinbey uopoy asueleA Jofey jo asned) Mo.__.wt.u_, aJsueUeA uwaow_ﬁ.un_ wwm_ﬂwﬂ ELITVETS

ZXipu

AYVNWNS - S HLINOW

Page 111



SeYo §65°0 250°252 L5¥°LSe V101l
aoueul ajes0dio)
(€1€£°0) (80¢°0) 05.°¢¢ 850'€Z *® [eRUaD |EJOL
‘malnal Japun daay (Wgn0'03) 40 SSoUBLBA JOUINy
‘9IS YoUOApPUES - P)] S[EDIINT JBWIO)
*‘MBIA3S Japun dadyy 0} uoljejas Ul wooy 03 J0 S1sod pajabpnqun ‘payw awy / Jo suQ
“(47) pund Buian)
‘MBIAR1 0} anunuo)| uspuadapu| ay) o) uonefal ul (WS 03) 10 Aouaiole seak-u yo-auQ
Jeak
‘suondo Jayjo 1e Bupjoo| Apuaning| Ui SjgeAaIyoBUN PaIapISUOI WG| 0F - ASUSIOIYT SAIOPUOA PajBWNST
‘suondo *SUOINQUIUOD [BUORIPPE JO SIS00 pajedidnue
yuawubijeas Japisuo) suondQ Buloueulq sjerodion uey) Jamoj 0} anp (WZ L6 03) MaIASY jelenoy uoisuad (Woyz 03)
‘ABajels aoueul4 Wia ) winipafy Jo Hed se mainay Jeak snoinaid wouy uoiieyu| PJepuBlS UON pasnun jo aduejeg
‘w09’ 03 Alerewixosdde jo saiousidye
‘uonebipw s|qissod|  ul uononpai e o) sajenba s)y) suondwnsse |eulbuo ||B uo paseg 1as aoueuly
Joj uonsod J[BJaA0 AJjuspl (1M V| 7D JO MaIARY [sem Jabipng ay Jaye pabueyo Junowe jJuswajyas ay | - Bupueuld voH|{(E1€°0) (80€°0) 0s/.°¢e 860°€C djelodio) B [BHUSY
aoueuld
ajesodio) g j_ajua)
(cci-0) (s81°0) 0L0E S6L°E SaANoaxg JaIyo [ejo)
‘SaouUBUEA Jou|W 0} anp s| (WRE0'03)
j0 aoueleq ayl ‘Aed paejss aosuewuopad o) Buneds syuswsioul
Joj pasanbas j8bpng syl uo (wypQ03F) JOo puadsiapun jenuajod
‘Aluo Jeak-uile s| asay) (wgzo'03) jo swswaalby Buipung s10D Ul uononpal
2q 0} pajoadxa ale (wggn 03) Jo sbunes aakojdw3|e osje pue (wg/0 03) Jo sbBuires aniopuom 0} anp si puadssapun ayL |{ceL0) (sg81-0) 0L0€ G6L'E SaAN23aX3 JaIyd
SaARNIaX] JatyH
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
b ¥ YIuon wnyno 186png
painbay uopoy asueue Joley jo asne) eouelEA osueUBA poyosfoid pesiney CLITNETS

Zxipusddy

AYVWAINS - S HLNOW

Page 112



2015/16 Efficiencies Month 5 - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

People & Resources

Review of specialist finance functions to identify efficiencies in
process

Ensure continuation of grant maximisation opportunities
identified in 2014/15

Review of specialist human resources functions to identify
efficiencies in process

Total People & Resources

Central and Corporate Finance
Workforce efficiency proposal

Central Loans and Investment Review
Total Central & Corporate Finance

Social Services

Develop means testing approach for minor adaptations

Review model/costs contracts for catering

Rationalise the number of sites where In-House short term care
is provided

Develop a ‘progression’ model for Supported Living

Review commissioning with Action for Children

Regional approach to advocacy

Review and realign funding to voluntary sector

Total Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Welfare Rights Team Review

Community Centres

Community Based Accommodation Support Service
Telecare Charging

Total Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation

Introduce non-generic Streetscene roles (3 year plan)
Develop Energy Production at Landfill
Rationalise HRC Sites

Removing the Waste Containers delivery service
Introduce Charge for 2nd Garden Waste Bin

Car Parking Charges

Cancel Real Time Info System

Charge Maintenance of Bus Shelters

Review subsidised bus routes

Externalise grass cutting service

Reduced Street Lighting resource

Remove second grass cut for highway verges
Reduce Cleansing standards zero tolerance litter
Part night street lighting in residential areas
Winter Maintenance (Car Parks and standard)
Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment
Staffing & Management Restructure (incl. all vacancies)

Staffing & Collaboration

Animal & Pest Control

Increased Planning Fees (15% WG increase)

Increase in number of Planning Applications

Additional elements of charging (discharge of conditions)
Pre-Planning Advice PDM111952P

Total Planning & Environment

Total 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

Appendix 3

- . . . (Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2015/16 2015/16 2015116
£(m) £(m) £(m)
0.170 0.166 (0.004)
0.100 0.066 (0.034)
0.105 0.000 (0.105)
0.375 0.232 (0.143)
0.300 0.150 (0.150)
1.830 1.230 (0.600)
2.130 1.380 (0.750)
0.100 0.000 (0.100)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.075 0.110 0.035
0.250 0.145 (0.105)
0.075 0.015 (0.060)
0.053 0.005 (0.048)
0.203 0.065 (0.138)
0.806 0.340 (0.466)
0.020 0.035 0.015
0.048 0.096 0.048
0.030 0.060 0.030
0.200 0.139 (0.061)
0.298 0.330 0.032
0.080 0.115 0.035
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.400 0.225 (0.175)
0.150 0.100 (0.050)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.400 0.380 (0.020)
0.020 0.025 0.005
0.005 0.000 (0.005)
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.075 0.025 (0.050)
0.050 0.038 (0.013)
0.030 0.025 (0.005)
0.150 0.050 (0.100)
0.020 0.030 0.010
0.150 0.170 0.020
1.705 1.258 (0.448)
0.295 0.178 (0.117)
0.024 0.036 0.012
0.030 0.005 (0.025)
0.135 0.050 (0.085)
0.060 0.030 (0.030)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.020 (0.006) (0.026)
0.614 0.318 (0.296)
% £
100 12.874
16 2.071
84 10.803

Page 113



Page 114



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2015

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the costs of the speed limit review

Less projected overspend as at Month 5

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
31st March 2016

Page 115

£m £m
10.515
(5.769)
4.746
(0.210)
(0.595)
3.941



Page 116



200°0 Lv0°0 17X 4 ) v€C0 s lejoL

(eyebaibbe)

*MalABl Japun daayy *SaouUBLEA Jouiw SnoueA |(£90°0) (1zo0) (tzv'1) (oov'L) seoueBUEA 13410
‘SBOUBLIEA JoUiw 0} sa)ejal w900 0F
Buuiewsal ay] -pajeoo|e buiaq 1ebpnq
uaiynsu; 0y anp abesn auoyd ajiqow
pue abeajiw yejs uo ainssaid WGz 0F
uawabebus yejs Aousbe
0] @np saue|jes uo ainssaid WE L0003
‘sainpasoud
199p peq uo paseq as19Aal 0) Buiuels
S92I0AUI S1eaA snoiaald 0] anp SHJOAA

‘MalABl Japun daoy) a|qeabieyosy uo ainssaid wgL0°03|990°0 2900 969°L ¥£9°L juswabeuey sjels]

(wgz) (w3) (w3) (w3)
pasinbay uoo aouelIBA JO asne EMM _>_ asueue, HANINO 19bpng JJINID
i v UEA § 9] woﬂ_m_uu> UeA pajoafoig pasinay IR

§ xipuaddy

G pouad - poday aosuelep Jolepy ViH

Page 117



Page 118



Agenda ltem 10

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 17" November 2015
Report Subject Council Tax Base for 2016-17
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Officer (Community & Enterprise)
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Setting the Council Tax Base for the next financial year allows the County Council,
Police & Crime Commissioners Office for North Wales and Town/Community
Councils to calculate next year’s Council Tax precept which funds, or partly funds,
local services.

The Tax Base for 2016-17 has been calculated as being 62,759 band D equivalent
chargeable properties, after taking into account the total number of properties that
are either exempt from council tax or where household discounts apply for
disabled reductions or other status discounts.

Setting the Tax Base at 62,759 band D equivalent properties also represents
growth in the Base of 1.2% compared to the previous year, equivalent to an
increase of 766 band D equivalent properties. This is largely as a direct result of
the effective management of the Base by reviewing single person discounts and
other exemptions coupled with the impact of new homes being built across the
County.

Setting of the latest Council Tax Base is integral to the revenue budget and
Council Tax setting process for 2016-17.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Approve the Tax Base of 62,759 band D equivalent properties (as shown
in Appendix 1) for the financial year 2016-17

2 Continue to set a ‘nil’ level of discount for properties falling within any of
the Prescribed Classes (A, B or C) and for this to apply to the whole of the
County area

Page 119



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2016/17

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

1.06

1.07

The Council fulfils the role of the ‘billing authority’ for the administration
and collection of Council Tax and each year the Council is required to set
the Council Tax Base for the following tax year.

The calculation of the Tax Base is always set as at 315t October each year
which then allows the Council, Police & Crime Commissioner for North
Wales and Town/Community Councils to calculate next year's Council Tax
precepts based on the estimated number of chargeable properties which
are expressed as an equivalent number of Band ‘D’ properties.

Once approved, the Tax Base calculations are also supplied to Welsh
Government and are then used for the distribution of Revenue Support
Grant in the annual provision and final local authority revenue settlement.

The calculation of the Tax Base for 2016-17 is the measure of the taxable
capacity for all areas in the County and is calculated in accordance with
prescribed rules. The starting point for determining the Council Tax Base is
the property band Valuation List supplied by the Valuation Office Agency.
The total number of properties in each band is then reduced by
exemptions and discounts. Discounts include, for example, reductions for
single-person households, households with one or more students.

The latest Tax Base has been calculated using a projected collection level
of 99.0% which ensures the Council sets the very highest collection level
in Wales and demonstrates the successes in collecting Council Tax. The
Tax base also reflects a very small allowance of 1% for bad debts.

To determine the final level of the Tax Base, the Council is also required to
determine what discount, if any, is awarded to owners of second or holiday
homes (otherwise known as Prescribed Discount Class A and B
properties) or long term empty properties (Prescribed Discount Class C).

The Council Tax Base for 2016-17 is also calculated in line with the current
policy of not awarding discounts to any Prescribed Class.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

2.02

Setting of the Council Tax Base is part of an annual process of
determining Council Tax charges for the next financial year as part of the
Council’s overall 2016-17 budget preparations.

The Council Tax Base is also used by the Police and Crime Commissioner
and Town/Community Councils to set their Council Tax precepts for 2016-
17, which will be included in the bills sent to every Council Tax payer in
March 2016.

Page 120




3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The Council has a statutory duty to set a Council Tax Base and the
proposed Tax Base is an accurate forecast for the next financial year
based on the number of chargeable properties after taking into account
property exemptions, reductions and discount schemes.

4.02 | The key risks centre around financial prudence and accuracy of forecasts
used to determine the Tax Base. The Tax Base is largely based on
property data and discount levels at a fixed point in time but includes a
provision of 1% for non-collection, giving a forecast collection rate of
99.0%. This is consistent with previous collection levels and minimises
financial risk to the Council.

4.03 | Officers carefully track and monitor the Tax Base and Collection Fund
performance on a monthly basis and the results feed into corporate budget
monitoring and reporting processes.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 shows a breakdown of the Tax Base for 2016-17 by Town and
Community area.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Local Government Finance Act 1992 — section 68
Local Authorities (Calculation of C. Tax Base) (Wales) Regulations 1995
Council Tax (Prescribed Classes of Dwellings) (Wales) Regulations 2004
Contact Office: David Barnes

Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
E-mail: david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Revenue Support Grant: the annual amount of money the Council receives from

Welsh Government to fund what it does alongside the Council Tax and other
income the Council raises locally. Councils can decide how to use this grant
across services although their freedom to allocate according to local choice can be
limited by guidelines set by Government.

Tax Base: is a measure of the Council’s ‘taxable capacity’ taking into account the

Page 121



mailto:david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

7.02

7.03

7.04

number of chargeable properties after taking into account exemptions and
discount schemes.

Chargeable dwellings: are all properties deemed to fall liable to Council Tax
which appear in the Valuation List.

Prescribed Discount Classes: Special rules apply to certain dwellings where no-
one is resident. In these cases, a Welsh billing authority may make a determination
to apply a lower rate of discount or, alternatively, to apply no discount at all.
These classes are

Class A — property which is unoccupied and furnished but where occupation is
prohibited by law for over 28 days each year, usually as a result of planning
restrictions

Class B — property which is unoccupied and furnished and where occupation is not
prohibited by law

Class C — property which is unoccupied and substantially unfurnished beyond the
normal exemption period

Page 122




APPENDIX 1 - COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2016-17

Community

Argoed
Bagillt

Broughton & Bretton

Brynford
Buckley
Caerwys
Cilcain
Connahs Quay
Flint
Gwernaffield
Gwernymynydd
Halkyn
Hawarden
Higher Kinnerton
Holywell

Hope
Leeswood
Llanasa
Llanfynydd
Mold

Mostyn
Nannerch
Nercwys
Northop
Northop Hall
Penyffordd
Queensferry
Saltney
Sealand
Shotton

Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor

Treuddyn
Whitford
Ysceifiog

TOTAL BAND 'D'
EQUIVALENT PROPS

2016-17 2015-16
Properties Properties
at Band 'D’ at Band 'D’
2,445.57 2451.77
1,460.48 1,463.21
2,550.87 2,424 19
475.00 473.82
6,542.65 6,427 .41
615.91 602.57
742.18 741.73
6,077.05 6,029.78
4,509.31 4,409.21
1,028.94 1,021.98
554.22 555.83
1,369.46 1,358.09
6,213.80 6,186.20
825.11 816.12
3,269.78 3,254.79
1,837.10 1,818.15
834.32 823.71
1,925.71 1,903.29
848.48 837.77
427747 4,235.42
710.77 713.60
272.32 268.54
306.24 302.23
1,525.46 1,517.62
762.27 739.04
1,953.93 1,838.14
687.82 680.98
1,845.31 1,814.63
1,133.04 1,141.28
2,186.42 2,176.89
412.73 414.18
748.03 753.33
1,139.75 1,132.51
671.50 664.99
62,759.00 61,993.00

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

Organisational Change - Leisure Services
e Fitness Suite Equipment
To approve the replacement of fithess suite equipment in Deeside, Mold, Flint
and Holywell Leisure Centres with a total value of £390,142 which will be
funded via prudential borrowing over 5 years.

Organisational Change
e School Meal Price Increase
Increases to the price of meals within schools to bring them more into line with
other school meal providers across Wales.

Streetscene
¢ Queensferry Roundabout and Asda Signal Junction Improvement Works
Modifications and other highway related improvement works.

Community and Enterprise
¢ Installation of Solar PV on Council Houses
Installation of Solar PV (Solar Panels) on Council Houses prior to the cut in the
Feed in Tariff on 31 December 2015.

Community and Enterprise
e Proposed granting of an Easement to provide a gas main supplying 10

Council properties at Tegfan Court, High Street, Caergwrle

It is recommended that approval is given for a mains gas pipe to be laid to
Tegfan Court, Caergwrle so the tenants can be connected and enjoy lower cost
and lower carbon heating. To this end, to facilitate the installation and as the
gas main supply pipe and the associated equipment will remain in the
ownership of the Statutory Undertaker, the County Council is required to grant
an easement to the Statutory Undertaker.

Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager’s Room,
Committee Services

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

NOVEMBER 2015 TO APRIL 2016

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
November

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

2 November 2015

Organisational Change

Alternative Delivery Model
Business plans for social
care

U To consider the Alternative

8 Delivery Model Business Plans
D for Social Care

—

rganisational
hange Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

2 November 2015

Organisational Change

Establishing ‘Intelligent
Client’ approaches for
Valuation, Property and
Estates

To consider the proposed
approaches for Valuation,
Property and Estates

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

2 November 2015

Organisational Change

Connah's Quay Swimming
Pool Community Asset
Transfer

To provide comments on the
business case from the
community

Xauuy epusbyy



COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

o
Q

2 November 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Quarter 1 Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report

To present the monitoring of
progress for the first quarter of
2015/16 focusing on the areas
of under performance relevant
to the Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

0

Mrganisational

-8hange Overview &
crutiny Committee

2 November 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

The role of the committee in
supporting Organisational
Change

To present information on the
role of the Committee in
supporting Organisational
Change

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

2 November 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Organisational Change)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Community and
Enterprise Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

4 November 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Delivery and outcomes of
recent Regeneration
Programmes

For Member review of the
delivery and outcomes of the
Vibrant and Viable Places
programme, Communities First
programme and European
funding programmes

Eommunity and
%nterprise Overview

4 November 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Growing the Local Economy
To seek Member support in the

Scrutiny Council’s vision to grow the
@ommittee local economy in towns and
© rural areas. To include
information on the work of the
Mersey Dee Alliance,
Economic Ambition Board, and
Deeside Enterprise Board.
Community and | 4 November 2015 Community and Framework for the
Enterprise Overview Enterprise implementation of Local
& Scrutiny Lettings Policies
Committee To consider options and

proposals to develop Local
Lettings policies for new
council housing




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Community and | 4 November 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Alternative Sites for the Extra
Enterprise Overview Care Facility in Holywell
& Scrutiny To provide the Committee with
Committee a verbal update on the
alternative sites identified for
the proposed Extra Care
Facility in Holywell
“Bommunity and | 4 November 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
%nterprise Overview To consider the Forward Work
("] Scrutiny Programme of the Community
-Sommittee & Enterprise Overview &
8 Scrutiny Committee.
Social & Health | 5 November 2015 Social Services Children Services Inspection

Report

To receive the CSSIW Children
Services Inspection report and
action plan

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

5 November 2015

Social Services

Alternative Delivery Models -
Day Services

To receive a report on
alternative delivery models -
day services.




Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

To receive a presentation from
CSSIW on their findings.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 5 November 2015 Social Services CSSIW Annual Report

Social &

5bed

Health

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

5 November 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Social & Health Care)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

&
Committee

§orporate
esources Overview

Scrutiny

12 November 2015

Finance

REVENUE BUDGET
MONITORING 2015/16
(MONTH 5)

To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 12 November 2015 | Chief Executive's Medium Term Financial
Resources Overview Strategy
& Scrutiny To receive a verbal update on
Committee the progress of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy for
2015-2018.
Corporate 12 November 2015 | Chief Executive's North Wales Fire & Rescue
“Besources Overview Authority - Consultation:
Scrutiny '"Your Services, Your
@ ommittee Choices'
- To receive a presentation on
% the Consultation document
'"Your Services', "Your Choices'.
Corporate 12 November 2015 | People and Resources | Workforce Information
Resources Overview Quarter 2
& Scrutiny To provide Members with an
Committee update on Workford
Information for the second
quarter for 2015/16.
Corporate 12 November 2015 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate

Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




To consider and endorse the
strategy

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 November 2015 | Education and Youth John Summers High School - | Operational Cabinet Member
Options for Home to School for Education
Transport
To review in detail the options
for future home to school
transport arrangements for
John Summers High School in
the event of school closure.
_Sabinet 17 November 2015 | Community and Suspension of Right to Buy Strategic Cabinet Member
a) Enterprise To seek approval for for Housing
8 suspension of Right to Buy in
S Flintshire
%abinet 17 November 2015 | Social Services Ageing Well Plan Strategic Cabinet Member

for Social
Services




Environment

BREEDING REGULATIONS
To inform Members of changes
to regulations in respect of dog
breeding in Wales.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 November 2015 | Finance REVENUE BUDGET Operational Leader of the
MONITORING 2015/16 Council and
(MONTH 5) Cabinet Member
To provide Members with the for Finance
latest revenue budget
monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
g-;U based on actual income and
(o) expenditure as at month (insert
@ month no.) and projected
a forward to year-end based on
N the most up to date information
available
Cabinet 17 November 2015 | Community and Council Tax Base for 2016-17 | Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Approval of the Council Tax for Corporate
Base for the financial year Management
2016-17
Cabinet 17 November 2015 | Planning and CHANGES TO DOG Operational Cabinet Member

for Waste
Strategy, Public
Protection and
Leisure




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 November 2015 | Social Services Children's Services Operational Cabinet Member
Restructure for Social
To seek approval of the Services
proposed restructure in
Children’s Services.
December

Environment
gverview & Scrutiny
ommittee
D

—

oY)
9)

3 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Q2 - Mid Year Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
(Environment)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

3 December 2015

Streetscene and
Transportation

A55/A494 Update

To receive a report on the
current position in relation to
proposed works on the
A55/A494

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

3 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Environment)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Education and
Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

3 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Q2 - Mid Year Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
(Education & Youth)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

—gducation and | 3 December 2015 Education and Youth School Balances

Qouth Overview & To provide the Committee with

%crutiny Committee details of the closing balances

- held by Flintshire schools at the

8 end of the financial year.
Education and | 3 December 2015 Education and Youth Learning from the School

Performance Monitoring
Group (SPMG)

To receive the annual report on
progress and learning from the
(SPMG)

Education and
Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

3 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Education & Youth)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

7 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Q2 - Mid Year Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
(Organisational Change)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

Organisational

Change Overview &
_acrutiny Committee
Q)

7 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work
Programme(Organisational
Change)

To consider the Forward Work

8 Programme of the
. Organisational Change
) Overview & Scrutiny
~ Committee.
Community and | 9 December 2015 Community and Strategic Housing and
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Regeneration Project
& Scrutiny (SHARP)
Committee To seek Members support on

the first phase Housing
schemes tenure and size mix
and funding arrangements




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Community and | 9 December 2015 Community and Service Charges and Council

Enterprise Overview Enterprise Housing

& Scrutiny To consider the outcomes and

Committee next steps following the
consultation exercise
completed about proposals to
introduce service charges for

. existing council tenants
J

X ommunity and
:=nterprise Overview

9 December 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Flintshire Business Week
2015

-2 Scrutiny To report on the outcomes of
gommittee Flintshire Business Week
Community and | 9 December 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Q2 - Mid Year Improvement
Enterprise Overview Plan Monitoring Report
& Scrutiny (Community & Enterprise)
Committee To enable Members to fulfil

their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.




monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 9 December 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work
Enterprise Overview Programme(Community &
& Scrutiny Enterprise)
Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Corporate 10 December 2015 | Overview and Scrutiny | Police & Crime
§esources Overview Commissioner: Consultation
(@3 Scrutiny on the Crime & Policing Plan
®ommittee for 2016/17
— .
) Consultation
e
Corporate 10 December 2015 | Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Month 6)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee latest revenue budget




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 10 December 2015 | Overview and Scrutiny | Q2 - Mid Year Improvement
Resources Overview Plan Monitoring Report
& Scrutiny (Corporate Resources)
Committee To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Corporate 10 December 2015 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
“Besources Overview (Corporate Resources)
Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
@ ommittee Programme of the Corporate
- Resources Overview &
43 Scrutiny Committee.
Cabinet 15 December 2015 | Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the

2015/16 (Month 6)

To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

15 December 2015

Finance

Capital Programme 2015/16
(Month 6)

To provide Members with the
Month 6 (end of September)
capital programme information
for 2015/16.

Operational

Cabinet

lv1 obed

3

15 December 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Strategic Housing and
Regeneration Project
(SHARP)

To seek support on the first
phase Housing schemes
tenure and size mix and
funding arrangements

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing

Cabinet

15 December 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Local Lettings Policy

To consider options and
proposals to develop Local
Lettings policies for new
council housing

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing

Cabinet

15 December 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Vibrant and Viable Places
Programme 2017 - 2020

To update on the
implementation of the 2014-17
programme and seek approval
for the development of
proposals for the 2017 - 2020
programme.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Economic
Development




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet 15 December 2015 | Governance ADMINISTRATION REVIEW Strategic Cabinet Member
This report is to approve an for Corporate
establishment structure for Management
generic administrative posts
and to note the savings
achieved by the administrative
review.

Qocial & Health | 17 December 2015 | Social Services Social Service Wellbeing Act

83are Overview &
ascrutiny Committee

—

update
To receive an update report on
the Act.

N
'\gocial & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

17 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Q2 - Mid Year Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
(Social & Health Care)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

17 December 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Social & Health Care)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
January

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

11 January 2016

Organisational Change

Medium Term Libraries Plan :

Hope, Mynydd Isa and
Saltney Libraries

To comment on the feasibility
of Community Asset Transfers
for these libraries

rganisational

hange Overview &
@crutiny Committee
—

11 January 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Organisational Change)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the

3 Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Community and | 12 January 2016 Finance Council Tax & Business Rate
Enterprise Overview Statutory Policies
& Scrutiny To ratify annual policies for the
Committee financial year 2016-17 that

determine discount schemes
and administrative
arrangements




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Community and | 12 January 2016 Community and Supporting People - Local
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Commissioning Plan
& Scrutiny To enable the Committee to
Committee consider appropriate measures
to manage reductions within
the Supporting People
Programme Grant to protect
service delivery as much as
§ possible
@ ommunity and | 12 January 2016 Finance Housing Revenue Account
—Enterprise Overview draft budget and Rent
Scrutiny Increase
Committee To provide the Committee with
the draft HRA budget and
proposed rent increase
Community and | 12 January 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Community

& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny

13 January 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Environment)

Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Corporate 14 January 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Month 7)
Scrutiny To provide Members with the
> ommittee latest revenue budget
@ monitoring information for
=~ 2015/16 for the Council Fund
an and Housing Revenue Account

based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 14 January 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
ducation and | 14 January 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
outh Overview & (Education & Youth)
=Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
3 Programme of the Education
Cabinet 19 January 2016 Community and Council Tax & Business Rate | Strategic Cabinet Member

Enterprise

Statutory Policies

To ratify annual policies for the
financial year 2016-17 that
determine discount scheme
and administrative
arrangements.

for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

/v| 9bed

19 January 2016

Finance

REVENUE BUDGET
MONITORING 2015/16
(MONTH 7)

To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance

Cabinet

19 January 2016

Community and
Enterprise

Housing Revenue Account
Draft Budget and Rent
Increase

To provide the draft HRA
Budget and proposed rent
increase

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 January 2016 Community and Supporting People - Local Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Commissioning Plan for Housing
To consider appropriate
measures to manage
reductions within the
Supporting People Programme
Grant to protect service
. delivery as much as possible.
J

g:ocial & Health
@are Overview &
ﬁcrutiny Committee

o

21 January 2016

Social Services

Adult Safeguarding

To update members on Adult
Safeguarding Performance and
current issues

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

21 January 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Social & Health Care)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Audit Committee

27 January 2016

Finance

Statements of Accounts
2014/15 — Action Plan

To provide the Audit
Committee with the Flintshire’s
response to the Wales Audit
Office Audit of 2014/15
accounts.

Audit Committee

611 abed

27 January 2016

Finance

Treasury Management
Strategy 2016/17 and 2015/16
Update

To present the draft Treasury
Management Strategy 2016/17
for review prior to the
Committee recommending its
approval to Cabinet. To provide
Members with a quarterly
update

Audit Committee

27 January 2016

Finance

Treasury Management Mid-
Year Report 2015/16

To provide an update on
matters relating to the Council’s
Treasury Management Policy,
Strategy and Practices 2015/16
to the end of September 2015.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

February

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny

9 February 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Environment)

Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
ALY Committee.
O]
o
_Gommunity and | 10 February 2016 Community and Housing (Wales) Act 2014 -
CAnterprise Overview Enterprise Homelessness
Scrutiny To review the implementation
Committee of the Housing (Wales) Act
2014 and how the Council
undertakes its new
homelessness prevention
statutory duty
Community and | 10 February 2016 Community and Introduction of Council Tax
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Premium for empty and
& Scrutiny second homes
Committee To seek the introduction of a

local scheme to charge council
tax premiums for long term
empty property and second
homes.




expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 10 February 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Community
Corporate 11 February 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Month 8)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
;Eommittee latest revenue budget
(@] monitoring information for
© 2015/16 for the Council Fund
c_,-,\ and Housing Revenue Account
- based on actual income and




Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 16 February 2016 Community and Introduction of Council Tax Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Premium for empty and for Economic
second homes Development
To seek the introduction of a
local scheme to charge council
tax premiums for long term
empty property and second
. homes
J
830rporate 11 February 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
@Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
- Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
%ommittee Programme of the Corporate

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

15 February 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Organisational Change)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

16 February 2016

Community and
Enterprise

Purchase of Ex Council
Stock

To consider proposals and
criteria for the repurchase of ex
council property.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing

Cabinet

€Gl abed

16 February 2016

Finance

REVENUE BUDGET
MONITORING 2015/16
(MONTH 8)

To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance

Cabinet

16 February 2016

Finance

Treasury Management Mid-
Year Report 2015/16

To present to Members the
draft Treasury Management
Mid-Year Report for 2015/16
for recommendation to Council.




Revenue Provision (MRP) for
the repayment of debt in
2016/17, as required under the
Local Authorities (Capital
Finance and Accounting0
(Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 ('the 2008
Regulations).

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 16 February 2016 Finance Prudential Indicators 2016/17 | Operational
to 2018/19
To present proposals for
setting a range of Prudential
Indicators in accordance with
the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities
. (the Prudential Code).
J
83abinet 16 February 2016 Finance Minimum Revenue Provision | Operational
[0 - 2016/17 Policy
- To present proposals for the
S{' setting of a prudent Minimum




To present to Council the
recommendations of Cabinet in
relation to Treasury
Management Strategy for
2016/17.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 16 February 2016 Finance Treasury Management
Strategy 2016/17
To present to Members the
draft Treasury Management
Strategy for 2016/17 for
recommendation to Council.
Flintshire County | 16 February 2016 Finance Treasury Management Mid-
Council Year Report 2015/16
;DU To present to Council the
(@] Treasury Management Mid-
@ Year Report for 2015/16 for
o approval.
(@2}
Flintshire County | 16 February 2016 Finance Treasury Management
Council Strategy 2016/17




Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Education & Youth)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 25 February 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

—tylarch
Q)
Q

D

_Social & Health
Bare Overview &
crutiny Committee

3 March 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Social & Health Care)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

14 March 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

2015/16 Q3 Improvement
Plan Monitoring
(Organisational Change)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Organisational
Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

14 March 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Organisational Change)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny

Committee.

Audit Committee 16 March 2016 Finance Wales Audit Office — Audit
o Plan 2016
) To provide the Audit
8 Committee with the Wales
T Audit Office - Audit Plan for
(&) 2016,

Audit Committee 16 March 2016 Finance Treasury Management

2015/16 Update

To provide members with a
quarterly update on matters
relating to the Council’s
2015/16 Treasury Management
Strategy up to the end of
February 2016.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Community and | 16 March 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Q3 Improvement
Enterprise Overview Plan Monitoring (Community
& Scrutiny & Enterprise)

Committee To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring

Community and | 16 March 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

Onterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work

@ ommittee Programme of the Community

- & Enterprise Overview &

% Scrutiny Committee.
Corporate 17 March 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Month 9)

& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee latest revenue budget

monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 17 March 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Q3 Improvement
Resources Overview Plan Monitoring (Corporate
& Scrutiny Resources)
Committee To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Corporate 17 March 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
ﬁommittee Programme of the Corporate
Q Resources Overview &
@ Scrutiny Committee.
—
an
e

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

17 March 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

2015/16 Q3 Improvement
Plan Monitoring
(Environment)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

17 March 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Environment)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

-Gabinet

09| obe

22 March 2016

Finance

REVENUE BUDGET
MONITORING 2015/16
(MONTH 9)

To provide Members with the
latest revenue budget
monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

22 March 2016

Finance

Capital Programme 2015/16
(Month 9)

To provide Members with the
Month 9 (end of December)
capital programme information
for 2015/16.

Operational

Cabinet

191 9bed

22 March 2016

Education and Youth

School Admission
Arrangements 2017

To advise members of the
outcome of the statutory
consultation exercise on the
admission arrangements for
September 2017

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Education

Education and
Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

24 March 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Education & Youth)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Education and
Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

24 March 2016

Overview and Scrutiny

2015/16 Q3 Improvement
Plan Monitoring (Education &
Youth)

To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.




month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
April
Cabinet 19 April 2016 Finance REVENUE BUDGET Operational Leader of the
MONITORING 2015/16 Council and
(MONTH 10) Cabinet Member
To provide Members with the for Finance
latest revenue budget
L) monitoring information for
o 2015/16 for the Council Fund
[0) and Housing Revenue Account
- based on actual income and
% expenditure as at month (insert




Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Approval to Apply to Welsh Government for Suspension of the Right to Buy in Flintshire
	Enc. 1 for Suspension of Right to Buy

	5 Ageing Well in Flintshire
	Enc. 1 for Ageing Well Plan

	6 Trades Union Bill
	Appendix 1 WLGA Council Report 25 September

	7 John Summers High School - Options for Home to School Transport
	Appendix 1 - Transport Policy

	8 Changes to Dog Breeding Regulations
	Appendix A - Welsh Dog Breeding Conditions 2014

	9 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 5)
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE BUDGE MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 5)

	10 Council Tax Base for 2016-17
	Enc. 1 for Council Tax Base for 2016-17

	11 EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
	 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION
	12 Children's Services Senior Manager Restructure
	Enc. 1 for Children's Services Restructure
	Enc. 2 for Children's Services Restructure


